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General Information
   

County: Harris

Name of Entity: Central Harris Co Regional WA

   

System Contact Physical Address

Address 1: 1300 Post Oak Blvd

Address 2: Suite 1400

City: Houston

State: TX

Zip: 77056-3078

Phone: (713) 623-4531

Fax: (713) 623-6143

Website: N/A

   

System Contact Mailing Address

Address 1: 1300 Post Oak Blvd



Address 2: Suite 1400

City: Houston

State: TX

Zip: 77056-3078

Description
   

Brief description of the project: COH, NHCRWA, and CHCRWA Shared Water Transmission

Pipeline (aka Second Source Line Phase I)

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Officers/Members
   

   

Applicant's Officers and Members

   

Margaret L. Cox

President

   

Julian F. Boddy

Vice President

   

Judge Caston

Secretary

   

Tom Gower

Assistant Secretary

   

Richard C. Meek

Assistant Secretray

   

Primary Contact



   

Name: Abraham I. Rubinsky

Title: Attorney

Address 1: 1300 Post Oak

Address 2: Suite 1400

City: Houston

State: TX

Zip: 77056-3078

Phone: (713) 623-4531

Fax: (713) 623-6143

Email: arubinsky@sphllp.com

Applicant's Contributors
   

   

Contributor Contracts (documents follow this page)

   

329212

Contributor Type Firm
Name

Contact
Name

Address Phone Fax Email

Applicant
Engineer

IDS
Engineer
ing
Group,
Inc.

Marcel
Khouw

13430 Northwest
Freeway, Suite
700
Houston
TX
77040-6091

713-462-
3178

713-462-
1631

mkhouw@idseg.c
om

Bond Counsel Schwart
z, Page
&
Harding,
L.L.P.

Abraha
m I.
Rubinsk
y

1300 Post Oak
Blvd., Suite 1400
Houston
TX
77056-3078

713-623-
4531

713-623-
6143

arubinsky@sphllp.
com

Financial Advisor The
GMS
Group,
L.L.C.

John F.
Howell

5075 Westheimer
Rd., Suite 1175
Houston
TX
77056-5675

713-626-
3552

713-626-
3347

jhowell@gmsgrou
p.com

Certified Public
Accountant (or
other appropriate
rep

F.
Matuska
, Inc.

Fran
Matuska

4600 Highway 6
North, Suite 315
Houston
TX
77084-2983

281-859-
8779

281-859-
8556

fmatuska@att.net

Legal Counsel Schwart
z, Page
&
Harding,
L.L.P.

Abraha
m I.
Rubinsk
y

1300 Post Oak
Blvd., Suite 1400
Houston
TX
77056-3078

713-623-
4531

713-623-
6143

arubinsky@sphllp.
com

Any other
Contributor
representing the
Applicant before
the board



Engineering Services

329215

Bookkeeping Services

329214

Financial Advisor Services

329213

Bond Counsel 

329216

Legal Counsel 
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A6 & A7



   

Counties

   

Harris

   

Identify the Applicant's total service area population:: 28,350

Funding Program(s)
   

Funding Programs

   

SWIFT: $2,905,000

Other Funding Sources
   

Other Funding Sources

   

   

Other Funding Comments: 

Funding Source Type of Funds
(Loan, Grant, etc.)

Amount ($) Date Applied for
Funding

Anticipated or
Funding Secured

Date
2015 SWIFT Bond $9,460,000 06-05-2015 07-23-2015



 

















Funding & Project Type



   

Requesting Funding for Planning: Y

Requesting Funding for Acquisition: Y

Requesting Funding for Design: Y

Requesting Funding for Construction: Y

   

Is the project a water project?: Y

   

Is the project a wastewater project?: N

   

Is Applicant requesting funding to refinance existing debt?: N

   

DUNS: 

   

Federal Awards information:

1. Did applicant receive over 80% of their revenue from Federal Awards last year?: 

2. Did applicant receive over $25 million in Federal Awards last year?: 

3. Does the public have access to executive compensation information via SEC or IRS reports?: 

   

Describe procedures for collecting monthly customer bills (include procedures for collection of

delinquent accounts): 



TWDB-0215 N/A



Contractors & Loan/Grant Participation Summary
   

Have you already solicited contractors?: 

Have contracts already been awarded?: 

Legal Information
   

Cite the legal authority under which the Applicant can issue the proposed debt including the

authority to make a proposed pledge of revenues.: Section 8815.151, Texas Special District Local

Laws Code

   

What type of pledge will be used to repay the proposed debt?: SYSTEMS_REVENUE

   

Provide the full legal name of the security for the proposed debt issue(s).: $2,905,000 CHCRWA

Revenue Bonds, Series 2016

   

Describe the pledge being offered and any existing rate covenants.: Principal of and interest on

the Bonds will be payable and secured by the net revenues of the CHCRWA.  The CHCRWA will

generate gross revenues sufficient to pay and provide for the timely payment of the Bonds through

pumpage fees and service fees assessed pursuant to the CHCRWA's rules and regulations.  

   



 







 









 









Bonds, CCN, Enforcement Action



   

Is the applicant proposing to issue revenue bonds?: Y

   

Does the applicant possess a Certificate of Convenience and Necessity (CCN)?: 

   

Has the applicant been the subject of any enforcement action by the Texas Commission on

Environmental Quality (TCEQ), the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA), or any other entity

within the past three years?: N
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Municipality
   

Is the area to be served by the project within the service area of a municipality or other public

utility?: Y

If yes, has the applicant obtained an affidavit stating that the utility does not object to the

construction and operation of the services and facilities in its service area?: N

If no, provide an explanation as to why not.: The CHCRWA was created for the purpose, among

others, of implementing and enforcing a groundwater reduction plan so that its Member Districts

achieve and maintain compliance with the Harris-Galveston Subsidence District’s (“HGSD”)

regulatory requirements.  The facilities proposed to be constructed in this project are essential to

the CHCRWA’s ability to meet the HGSD’s mandates.  Please see Attachment Part A1 for a copy

of the CHCRWA’s enabling legislation. 



NoObjectionAffidavit N/A



Board Approved WCP
   

If the assistance requested is more than $500,000 a Water Conservation Plan (WCP) is required.

The WCP cannot be more than FIVE years old and must have been adopted by the applicant. Has

the applicant adopted a Board-approved WCP?  (Check one and attach requested information, if

any.): Y

Enter date of Applicant's WCP adoption: 2014-05-01 00:00:00.0



WATER CONSERVATION
AND

DROUGHT CONTINGENCY PLAN

FOR THE

CENTRAL HARRIS COUNTY
REGIONAL WATER AUTHORITY

HOUSTON, TEXAS

PREPARED BY:

++++ IDS
Engineering Group

13333 Northwest Freeway, Suite 300
Houston, Texas 77040

713-462-3178—Telephone
713-462-1631 —Fax

May 1, 2014
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WATER CONSERVATION
AND

DROUGHT CONTINGENCY PLAN

TABLE OF CONTENTS

SECTION TITLE

Introduction

Utility Evaluation

Pubhc Involvement

Water Conservation Plan

Drought Contingency Plan

APPENDICES

Appendix A —Drought Contingency Plan

Appendix B —Resolution Adopting Water Conservation & Drought Contingency Plan &
Regulations Pertaining to the Adoption of Water Conservation Plans by
Member Districts of the Authority

Appendix C —Authority Map

ABBREVIATIONS

MG —Million Gallons
MGD —Million Gallons per Day
MGY —Million Gallons per Year
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I. INTRODUCTION

The Central Harris County Regional Water Authority ("Authority" ) of Harris County

was created by House Bill Number 3181 of the 79'0 Legislature of the State of Texas,

Regular Session, 2005. The purpose of the Authority is to prepare and implement a

plan to construct and operate the necessary public water transmission facilities to

convert an area in central Harris County, Texas from groundwater to surface water.

The Authority is expressly authorized to purchase, own, hold, lease and maintain

pipelines for the transportation of water, to build and operate plants for the treatment

and distribution of water, to purchase from and sell water to towns, cities,

conservation and reclamation districts and other political subdivisions of the State of
Texas, or to private corporations and individuals. The Board of Directors has the

managing control and operation of the Authority's system. Three members of the

Board of Directors are elected by precincts comprised of one or more districts. Two

members are elected at-large.

The Authority boundary includes all the acreage encompassed by the Member

Districts (as defined in the above legislation creating the Authority) and is estimated

at 4,800 acres. The Member Districts are in Regulatory Area m of the Harris-

Galveston Coastal Subsidence District that permits their water wells.

The Authority will provide wholesale treated surface water to connected Member

Districts. The Authority will operate a surface water transmission and distribution

system (othe system") in order to meet the Harris Galveston Subsidence District
(oHGSD") mandates for surface water conversion by the Member Districts through

ultimately providing an overall 80 percent surface water usage rate among the

Member Districts. Surface water is purchased from the City of Houston and is

conveyed to certain Member Districts water plant facilities by way of the System.

II. UTILITY EVALUATION

A. WATER SUPPLY AND TRANSMISSION SYSTEM INFORMATION

1. Population of Service Areas (Estimated): 26,000

2. Areaof Service Areas: 4,800 acre

3. Water Production and Sales Information

a) Water supplied during the last year (2006) —1,672 MG

b) Avg. water supphed for last two years (2005 - 2006) —1,667 MG

c) Monthly water sales by user for last year (2006) —See Table 1

1 u 000\102900000 chcrwatt 02900500 chcrwa sw conversrontwater conserv dc dronght contmgency ptanstwater conservation plan

chcnva 05 07 14 doc
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TABLE NO. I

2013 Total Water Usage (MG)

Jan

HCMUD 33 17203

HCMUD 150 19539

HCMUD 217 4653

HCMUD 304 11816
FALLBROOKUD 19533

HCMUD 200 30433

HCMUD 205 0

Rankin Rd MUD 3673

HCMUD 399 0

HCMUD 215 4173

HCUD 16 7570

Feb Mar

15487 17932

13560 23114

3304 5585

11815 14337

18284 20648

27145 32240

0 0

3546 4853

0 0

3888 4150

6716 8976

May

20042

Apnl

17199

June

20621

23947

5538

15222

19560

31566
0

5122

0

4094

9119

6770 6966

18318 18698

21219 23033

37545 35504

0 0

6738 6946

0 0

4340 4679

10962 11902

22027 29231

July

22273

26293

7301

20225

23074

37325

0

7523

0

5336

12643

Aug Sept

25751 22212

28795 24474

7904 6490

21525 17186

27132 26017

43879 37911

0 0

7631 6455

0 0

5111 4732

13178 10913

oct
20453

22206

5445

13650

20162

32602

0

5284

5016

8659

Nov Dec

18510 17591

20565 21671

5525 1844

12009 11243

19523 20709

30040 33711

0 0

4650 1249

0 0

6033 5952

1704 0

d) Highest average daily water use on record for system —1.488 MGD

e) Peak daily use for the last year 2.232 MGD

4. Number and type of meter connections in service area; 11 —Public Entity

5. Net gain of new connections per year

N/A —Residential N/A —Commercial

6. Source of Water: City of Houston

7. Safe annual yield of water supply: Not Applicable

8. Design capacity of water system; 7.5 MGD

9. Major high volume customers

Name

1. HCMUD 33

2. HCMUD 150

3. Fallbrook UD

4. HCMUD 200

B. UTILlTY FINANCIAL OPERATIONS INFORMATION

Ouantitv (MGY)

235.274

280,659

258,894

409,901

Water rate structures

Effective as of July I, 2013 the Authority assesses a pumpage fee of
$1.56per 1000 gallons for groundwater and $1.90per 1000 gallons for

surface water to all Member Districts based on total water pumped.

The fee is also assessed on imported groundwater.

c losers\pautwtappdatatlocattnucrosofttwrudowsttemporary mteruet fdestcontent outlookttyot3uattwater conservatron plan ckcrwa 05 07 14 doc
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2. Sources revenue:

Percent of Annual Revenues from water rates —100% (assuming is

importation fee revenue)

3. Annual Operating Costs

a) Average Annual Operating Costs - $500,000

b) Percent of Average Annual Operating Cost that are Fixed Cost—

94%

c) Percent of Average Annual Operating Costs that are Vaitable—

6%

OTHER APPLICABLE INFORMATION

1. Applicable local regulations relating to Water Conservation and Drought

Contingency Planning.

~ City of Houston Drought Contingency Plan
~ Water Supply Contract by and among the Authority and the City of

Houston.
~ HGSD Water Wise Program —Eight of the Member Districts

participate in the AWBD Water Smart Program.

2. Information on Member Districts; See TABLE No. 2

TABLE NO. 2

Member Districts

Fallbrook UD
c/o Abraham Rubinsky
Schwartz Page & Hardmg, LLP
1300 Post Oak Blvd, Suite 1400
Houston, TX 77056
Hams County MUD 150
c/o Kara Richardson
Marks Richardson, PC
3700 Buffalo Speedway, Suite 830
Houston, TX 77098
Hams County MUD 217
c/o Mana Salinas Parkei
Sanford & Kuhl
1980Post oak Blvd, Suite 1380
Houston, TX 77056
Heros County MUD 304
c/o Mitchell Page
Schwartz, Page & Hardmg, LLP
1300 Post Oak Blvd, Suite 1400
Houston, TX 77056

Rankin Road West MUD
c/o Taylor Goodall
Snuth, Murdaugh, Little & Bonham, LLP
2727 Allen Parkway, Suite 1100
Houston, TX 77019
Hams County MUD 215
c/o Spencer Creed
Schwartz, Page & Harding, LLP
1300 Post Oak Blvd, Suite 1400
Houston, TX 77056
Hams County MUD 200
c/o Spencer Creed
Schwartz, Page & Harding, LLP
1300 Post Oak Blvd., Suite 1400
Houston, TX 77056
Harris County MUD 205
c/o Spencer Creed
Schwartz, Page & Harding, LLP
1300 Post Oak Blvd, Suite 1400
Houston, TX 77056

1 \1000002900000 chcrwau02900500 chcrwa sw converstontwater conserv & dtooght connngency planstwater conservation plan
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Harris County MUD 33
c/o Regina Adams
Johnson, Radclil'fe, Petrov & Bobbitt, PLLC
1001 McKtnney St, Suite 1000
Houston, TX 77002
Hams County MUD 399
c/o Peter T. Harding
Schwartz, Page & Harding, LLP
1300Post Oak Blvd, Suite 1400
Houston, TX 77056

Hams County UD 16
c/o David M Marks
Marks Richardson, P C
3700 Buffalo Speedway, Suite 830
Houston, TX 77098

III. PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT

A. Public at Large

The Authority holds regular board meetings once each month. Directors meet the

first Wednesday of each month. These meetings are open to the public and

anyone is free to speak to the Board of Directors.

IV. WATER CONSERVATION PLAN

A. EDUCATION AND INFORMATION
The Authority will promote water conservation by informing the public of ways

to conserve water. The following methods will be used to inform water users.

1. The Authority will make its Member Districts aware that water

conservation material is available from the TWDB and the HGSD.
2. The Authority will provide an annual water conservation message to

its Member Districts.

Information obtained from various regulatory agencies will be used as the basis

for public education as well as pre-printed brochures from:
Texas Water Development Board
P. O. Box 13231, Capital Station
Austin, Texas 78711-3231

B. PLUMBING CODE —NOT APPLICABLE

C. RETROFIT PROGRAM —NOT APPLICABLE

D. WATER RATE STRUCTURE

E.

The rate structure will be based on a formula included in the rate order to be

adopted by the Authority on or before completion of the System.

METERING

The AUTHORITY will meter 100/o of the water sold. Incorporated into the

Water Conservation Plan, the Authority will set up the following meter testing

schedule:

l liooou 02900000 chcrwau 02900500 chcnva sw conversrontwater consei v & drought contingency planslwatei conservation plan
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~ Authority Delivery Meters —Calibrated annually.

~ City of Houston Delivery Point Meters - Calibrated annually.

~ Water well meters —Cahbrated annually.

The Authority will engage the services of an operating company (the "Operator" )
which will use a computer billing system handle all of the billing. The billing

system will compare meter readings monthly and note dramatic changes.

F. WATER CONSERVATION LANDSCAPING —NOT APPLICABLE

LEAK DETECTION AND REPAIR
The Authority leak detection program includes:

~ Electronic Surveillance —Monitor the quantity of water purchased from

the City of Houston compared with the quantity sold to the Member

Districts.
~ Leak Detection and Location Program —visual inspection by Operator

employees to watch for abnormal conditions indicating leaks (i.e. sink

holes, flowin water, etc.).
~ Maintain an adequate and quahfied maintenance staff, which is available

to repair leaks as they are located or perform corrective measures.
~ Monthly water use accounting by the billing computer system, which

identifies high water use for service meters indicating possible leaks or

malfunction.
~ Water Accountabihty — Achieve less than 5% water loss through

apphcation of the above steps.

H. RECYCLING AND REUSE
The Authority will have no means to recycle or reuse water. There are no

customers at this time that would be able to recycle water.

I. IMPLEMENTATION AND ENFORCEMENT —NOT APPLICABLE

J. DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM AND/OR RESIDENTIAL PRESSURE CONTROLS
—NOT APPLICABLE

l U 000u02900000 chctwau02900500 chcrwa sw convernonlwater conserv dc drought contingency planstwater conservation plan
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DROUGHT CONTINGENCY PLAN

A. INTERRUPTED SUPPLY STRATEGY

The rate order adopted by the Authority requires Member Districts to maintain

water wells in operation to augment or provide water supply in the case of an

interrupted supply from the System.

B. LIMITS ON WATER SUPPLY

l. If the City of Houston restricts the Authority to less than 100% of its

contracted water supply the Authority has:

a) The nght to liriut water supply to each Member District directly

proportional to the City restriction.

b) The right to limit water supply to each Member District
considering Member District alternative sources of water supply,
such as wells and interconnects.

2. If the water supply from the City is suspended each Member District is

responsible to meets its own demands by alternative sources such as

wells and/or interconnects.

3. See also Texas Water Code, Section 11.039.

C. EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT

Each Member District is required by TCEQ rules to adopt a Drought

Contingency Plan. By implementing their plans the reduction of
demand would be directly reflected in Authority demand in the event

of drought conditions.

D. CONTRACTUALSURCHARGES

If the City imposes a surcharge on water delivered to the Authority as

a part of its Drought Contingency Plan, the Authority will limit its

supply to Member Districts so as to avoid or minimize the impact of
the surcharge

DROUGHT CONTINGENCY PLAN - APPENDIX A

F. DROUGHT CONTINGENCY PLAN ADOPTION —APPENDIX B

c tuserstpaulwtappdatatlocahnucrosofttwutdowsttemporary tnternet filencontcnt outlooktjyolsuattwater conservatton plan chcrwa 05 07 14 doc
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APPENDIX A
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APPENDIX A

DROUGHT CONTINGENCY PLAN
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DROUGHT CONTINGENCY PLAN

Section 1: Purnose of the Plan. The board of Directors (the "Board") of Central

Harris County Regional Water Authority (the "Authority" ), has carefully

considered the current water conditions in the Authority and has determined that

the adoption of this Drought Contingency Plan (the "Plan" ) by the Authority is

necessary to ensure that an adequate supply of water is maintained. The Board
also desires to provide in the Plan for the possibility of a natural thsaster or

equipment failure.

Section 2: Water from the Citv: Citv Reductions. The Authority receives water

from the City of Houston ("City" ). The Authority shall consult with the City in

order to respond appropriately to the City's Drought Contingency Plan for
reductions in water supply. Also in such case, if the City implements drought

response stages pursuant to its drought contingency plan, the Authority will

evaluate implementing its drought response stages and evaluate the need to

discourage excessive use of water in an effort to reduce the use of water.

Section 3: Education and Information. The Authority will engage in an

educational program to promote the Plan which may include any of the following:

A. Distribution of information regarding the plan to Member

Districts of the Authority; and

B. Direct distributions of educational and informational

material regarding the Plan to customers of the Member

Districts; and

Additional educational activities consisting of (i)
publishing articles in a newsletter of general circulation in

the Authority's service area, providing tips or information

on water saving techniques, or (ii) conducting an

informational school program in a school attended by
students within the Authority's service area, or (iii)
conducting an educational program at a public place within

accessible to residents of the Authority, or (iv) conducting

or engaging in such other informational or educational

activity designed to further the Plan as, in discretion of the

Board, may be consistent with the purposes and policies of
this Plan, or (v) any combination of the foregoing.

Section 4; Retrofit Educational Proaram. The Authority shall make information

regarding the Plan available to Member Districts to provide to its customers

1 u 000't102900000 chcnvau02900500 chcrwa sw converston'twater conscrv gr drought contmgency plansidrought contmgency plan
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purchasing and installing various plumbing fixtures, lawn watering equipment,

and other water-using appliances.

Section 5: The Drought Contingencv Plan.

A. Pubhc Involvement. The Authority shall actively inform its Member

Districts, and affirmatively provide the opportunity for input from them

regarding the Plan.

B. Trigger Conditions. For the purpose of this Plan, the Authority hereby

adopts the trigger conditions (the "Trigger Conditions" ) set forth below,

which are based on study and/or statistical analysis of the vulnerabihty of
water sources under drought of record" conditions. These Trigger
Conditions are for the purpose of responding to, but not limited to, the

following situations: (a) reduction in available water supply up to a repeat

of the drought of record; (b) water production or distribution system

limitations; (c) supply source contanunation; or (d) water system outage

due to the fadure or damage of major water system components (e.g,
pumps).

1. Mild Drought. This condition (herein, "Mild Drought Conditions" )
exists when demand on the Authority's water supply facilities reaches or

exceeds eighty percent of the production capacity of such facilities for 3

consecutive days, as determined by the Authority' operator.

2. Moderate Drought. This condition (herein, "Moderate Drought
Conditions" ) exists when demand on the Authority's water supply
facilities reaches or exceeds ninety percent of the production capacity of
such facihties for 3 consecutive days, as determined by the Authority's

operator.

3. Severe Drought. This condition (herein, "Severe Drought Conditions" )
exists when demand on the Authonty's water supply facilities reaches or

exceeds one hundred percent of the production capacity of such facilities

for 24 hours, as determined by the Authority's operator.

C. Notice. Once one of the above Trigger Conditions has occurred, Member

Districts will be notified that such Trigger Condition has occurred and of
the Drought Response Measures (as defined below) to be taken. The

process of notifying Users may include any of the following:

1. Mailing, at least 48 hours prior to the commencement of the required

Drought Response Measures, a written notice to each Member District;
and

2. Posting notices at public places m the Authonty.

1 11000\102900000 chctwau02900500 chcrwa sw converstontwater conserv dc drought contmgency planstdtought contmgency plan
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Any notice issued shall contain (i) the date the Drought Response Measures

will begin, (ii) the date the Drought Response Measures will terrmnate, if known,

(iii) a hst of Drought Response Measures to be implemented, and (iv) an

explanation of penalties for violations of such Drought Response Measures.

D. Emeraencv Management Program. The Authority hereby establishes and

adopts the following measures ("Drought Response Measures" ) for the respective

Trigger Conditions. The Drought Response Measures related to each Trigger

Condition shall automatically become effective and shall be implemented by the

Authority when Trigger conditions occurs.

1. Mild Drouaht. In the event of Mild Drought Conditions, the following

Drought Response Measures shall be taken:

a. Member Distncts will be asked to take actions to voluntarily

reduce water use and will be informed of specific steps

that can be taken to reduce water use.

2. Moderate Drought. In the event of Moderate Drought Conditions, the

following Drought Response Measures shall be taken.

a. The Drought Response Measures established for Mild Drought

Conditions shall continue to be implemented.

b. The Authonty shall recommend that the following water

use by any customers of its Member Districts not essential for

public health and safety be curtailed:

(I) Street washing;

(2) Fire hydrant flushing; and

(3) Filling of swimming pools.

3. Severe Drouaht. In the event of Severe Drought Conditions, the

following Drought Response Measures shall be taken:

a. The Drought Response Measures established for Mild Drought

Conditions and Moderate Drought Conthtions shall continue to be
implemented.

b. Consistent with the City of Houston's Drought Contingency

measures, the Authority is authorized to ration water to Member

Districts.

1 u0001102900000 chcrwau 02900500 chcrwa sw converstonlwater conserv & drought contmgency planstdrought conttngency plan
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E. Termination of Triaaer Conditions Notification. When a Trigger
Condition occurs, the Authority shall enforce the Drought Response

Measures applicable to such Trigger Conditions for a rmnimum of five (5)
days after the last day the demand on the Authority's water supply
facilities reaches or exceeds the limits of such Trigger Conditions. After

such five (5) day period, the Drought Response Measures prescribed may,

in the discretion of the Board, be continued for an additional five (5) day

period. After the expiration of ten (10) days, and assuming no other

Trigger Conditions have occurred, the Drought Response Measures

prescribed shall terminate and the Authority shall cease implementation

and enforcement of such measures. The Authority will notify Member

Districts of the termination of the particular Drought Response Measures

and may utilize the same manner of notification used to inform Member

Districts of the Occurrence of the Trigger Condition and implementation

of the Drought Response Measures.

Section 6: Emeraencv Continaencv Plan. In the event of a fire, flood hurricane,

lighting strike, tornado, windstorm, or any other act of God, riot, terrorist act, or

any other act of civil disobedience, or any other similar occurrence which results

in the inability of he Authority to provide potable water to Member Districts (or
the likelihood thereof), the Board, in its discretion, may, without prior notice,

invoke all or any of the Drought Response Measures set forth in this Plan as

"Emergency Response Measures". The Board may establish any of the penalties

set forth in Section 8 for violations of the Emergency Response Measures.

Section 7: Implementation. Without limitation to specific actions stated in this

Plan to be taken by the Authority's operator, the Authority's operator will

athninister and enforce this Plan, and will oversee and be responsible for the

execution and implementation of all elements of this Plan. The operator shall keep
adequate records for plan verification. The Authority's operator shall report to the

Board of the Authority, at meetings of the Board, regarding actions taken and

which need to be taken under this Plan. Without limiting the foregoing, the

Authority's operator shall advise the President of the Board (or if the President is

unavailable to receive notification, another member of the Board) as soon as

reasonably practicable when a particular Trigger Condition has been reached

under this Plan and when a particular drought condition no longer exists.

Section 8: Variances.

A. Policv: The Authority may, in writing, grant a temporary variance to

rationing or pro rata water allocation policies adopted pursuant to this

Plan, or a temporary variance to a provision in the Plan, if it is

deternuned that failure to grant such variance would cause an

emergency condition adversely affecting the public health, welfare, or

safety and if one or more of the following conditions are met:

1 tt000tt 02900000 chcrwa\1 02900500 chcrwa sw converstontwater conserv gt drought contmgency planndrought contmgency plan
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1. Compliance with this Plan cannot be technically accomplished

during the duration of water supply shortage or other condition for
which the Plan is in effect.

2. Alternative methods can be implemented which will achieve the

same level of reduction in water use.

B. Petition: Persons requestmg an exemption from the provisions of this

plan shall file a petition for variance with the Authority within 5 days

allocation has been invoked. All petitions for variances shall be
reviewed by the Authority and shall include the following:

1. Name and address of the petitioner(s).
2. For Authority residents and other users of water within the

Authority, a detailed statement as to how the specific provision

of the Plan adversely affects the petitioner or what damage or
harm will occur to the petitioner or others if petitioners

comphes with this Plan or rationing of water adopted by the

Authority pursuant to this Plan.
3. For wholesale water customers, if any, a detailed statement

with supporting data and information as to how the pro rata
allocation of water under the policies and procedures

estabhshed in the Plan adversely affects the petitioner or what

damage or harm will occur to the petitioner or others if
petitioner comphes with this plan.

4. Description of the relief requested.
5. Period of time for which the variance is sought.
6. Alternative measures the petitioner is taking or proposes to

take to meet the intent of this Plan and compliance date.

7. Other pertinent information.

C. Conditions: Variances granted by the Authority shall be subject to the

following conditions unless waived or modified by the Authority or its

designee:

1. Variances granted shall include a timetable for comphance.
2. Variances granted shall expire when the Plan is no longer in

effect, unless the petitioner has failed to meet specified
requirements.

No Variance shall be retroactive or otherwise justify any violation

of this Plan occurring prior to the issuance of the variance.

Section 10: Remedies Cumulative. All rights, remedies, sanctions,

penalties and enforcement procedures provided for in this Order are

cumulative. In addition, the Authority shall have and may exercise and

enforce any and all rights and remedies provided by law or in equity.
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Section 11: Notice to TCEO. The Authority shall notify the executive

director of the TCEQ within five (5) business days of the implementation

of any mandatory provisions of this Plan.

Section 12: Rate Order Provisions. The rate order to be adopted by the

Authority shall be included a provision that in case of a shortage of water

resulting from drought, the water to be distributed shall be divided in

accordance with Texas Water Code, Section 1 E039.
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APPENDIX E

WATER CONSERVATION AND DROUGHT
CONTINGENCY PLAN ADOPTION
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RESOLUTION REGARDING REVIEW
WATER CONSERVATION AND DROUGHT CONTINGENCY PLAN

WHEREAS, the Central Hanis County Regional Water Authority ("Authority" ) adopted

its Water Conservation and Drought Contingency Plan, dated May 7, 2008 (the "Plan" ) pursuant

to Chapter 288, Texas Administrative Code; and

WHEREAS, Chapter 288, Texas Administrative Code, requires the District to perform a

review of the Plan on an established five (5) year schedule, and a review is required on or before

May I, 2014; and

WHEREAS, the Authority has, on the date hereof, performed said review;

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the

Central Harris County Regional Water Authority that the policies, procedures, and provisions set

forth in the Plan are hereby amended pursuant to the attached Water Conservation and Drought

Contingency Plan which shall remain in effect until amended by further action of the District and

the Plan is hereby revoked effective as of the effective date of this Resolution.

PASSED AND ADOPTED ON THIS 7th day of May, 2014 to be effective as of the I"
day of May, 2014.

ATTEST:

CENTRAL HARRIS COUNTY
REGIONAL WATER AUTHORITY

By: /s/ Judae Caston
Secretary
Board of Directors

By: (s( Maraaret Cox
President
Board of Directors
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CERTIFICATE FOR RESOLUTION

THE STATE OF TEXAS

COUNTY OF HARRIS

I, the undersigned officer of the Board of Directors of the Central Harris County Regional

Water Authority, do hereby certify as follows:

1. The Board of Directors of the Central Harris County Regional Water Authority

convened in regular session on the 7'" day of May, 2014, and the roll was called of the duly

constituted officers and members of the Board, to-wit:

Margaret L. Cox
Julian F. Boddy
Judge Caston
Tom Gower
Richard C. Meek

President
Vice President
Secretary
Assistant Secretary
Assistant Secretary

and all of said persons were present, thus constituting a quorum. Whereupon, among other

business, the following was transacted at the meeting: a written

RESOLUTION ADOPTING WATER CONSERVATION AND DROUGHT
CONTINGENCY PLAN, AND REGULATIONS PERTAINING TO THE

ADOPTION OF WATER CONSERVATION PLANS BY MEMBER
DISTRICTS OF THE

CENTRAL HARRIS COUNTY REGIONAL WATER AUTHORITY

was introduced for the consideration of the Board, It was then duly moved and seconded that the

Resolution be adopted; and, after due discussion, the motion, carrying with it the adoption of the

Resolution, prevailed and carried unanimously.

2. That a true, full and correct copy of the aforesaid Resolution adopted at the

meeting described in the above and foregoing paragraph is attached to and follows this

certificate; that the Resolution has been duly recorded in the Board's minutes of the meeting; that

the persons named in the above and foregoing paragraph are the duly chosen, qualified and acting

officers and members of the Board as indicated therein; that each of the officers and members of
the Board was duly and sufficiently notified officially and personally, in advance, of the time,

place and purpose of the aforesaid meeting, and that the Resolution would be introduced and

considered for adoption at the meeting, and each of the officers and members consented, in

advance, to the holding of the meeting for such purpose; that the meeting was open to the public

as required by law; and that public notice of the time, place and subject of the meeting was given

as required by Chapter 551, Texas Govermnent Code, and Section 49.063, Texas Water Code.
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SIGNED AND SEALED the 7'" day of May, 2014.
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CERTIFICATE FOR RESOLUTION

THE STATE OF TEXAS

COUNTY OF HARRIS 5

I, the undersigned officer of the Board of Directors of the
Central Harris County Regional Water Authority, do hereby certify
as follows:

1. The Board of Directors of the Central Harris County
Regional Water Authority convened in regular session on the 7 day
of May, 2008, and the roll was called of the duly constituted
officers and members of the Board, to-wit:

Margaret L. Cox
Julian F. Boddy
Judge Caston
Tom Gower
Richard C. Meek

President
Vice President
Secretary
Assistant Secretary
Assistant Secretary

and all of said persons were present, thus constituting a quorum.
Whereupon, among other business, the following was transacted at
the meeting: a written

RESOLUTION ADOPTING WATER CONSERVATION AND DROUGHT

CONTINGENCY PLAN, AND REGULATIONS PERTAINING TO THE

ADOPTION OF WATER CONSERVATION PLANS BY MEMBER DISTRICTS
OF THE

CENTRAL HARRIS COUNTY REGIONAL WATER AUTHORITY

was introduced for the consideration of the Board. It was then
duly moved and seconded that the Resolution be adopted; and, after
due discussion, the motion, carrying with it the adoption of the
Resolution, prevailed and carried unanimously.

2. That a true, full and correct copy of the aforesaid
Resolution adopted at the meeting described in the above and
foregoing paragraph is attached to and follows this certificate;
that the Resolution has been duly recorded in the Board's minutes
of the meeting; that the persons named in the above and foregoing
paragraph are the duly chosen, qualified and acting officers and
members of the Board as indicated therein; that each of the
officers and members of the Board was duly and sufficiently
notified officially and personally, in advance, of the time, place
and purpose of the aforesaid meeting, and that the Resolution would
be introduced and considered for adoption at the meeting, and each
of the officers and members consented, in advance, to the holding
of the meeting for such purpose; that the meeting was open to the
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public as required by law; and that public notice of the time,
place and subject of the meeting was given as required by Chapter
551, Texas Government Code, and Section 49.063, Texas Water Code.

SIGNED AND SEALED the 7 day of May, 2008.
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RESOLUTION ADOPTING WATER CONSERVATION AND DROUGHT

CONTINGENCY PLAN, AND REGULATIONS PERTAINING TO THE

ADOPTION OF WATER CONSERVATION PLANS BY MEMBER DISTRICTS
OF THE

CENTRAL HARRIS COUNTY REGIONAL WATER AUTHORITY

WHEREAS, the Central Harris County Regional Water Authority
(the "Authority" ) is a regional water authority located within
Harris County, Texas, a body politic and corporate, and a
governmental agency of the State of Texas created and operating
under the provisions of Chapter 656, Acts of the 79th Texas
Legislature, Regular Session, 2005 (codified in Chapter 8815, Texas
Special District Local Laws Code), enacted pursuant to the
provisions of Section 59 of Azticle XVI of the Texas Constitution,
such being hereinafter referred to as the "Code" and with all
references thereto being made to the codification; and

WHEREAS, the Authority was created to provide for the
conservation, preservation, protection, recharge, and prevention of
waste of groundwater, and for the reduction of groundwater
withdrawals as necessary to develop, implement, or enforce a
groundwater reduction plan in a manner consistent with the purposes
of Section 59, Article XVI, Texas Constitution, and facilitate
compliance with rules, orders, regulations, or requirements of the
Harris-Galveston Subsidence District ("Subsidence District" ); and

WHEREAS, the Code authorizes the Authority to acquire or
develop surface water and groundwater supplies from sources inside
or outside the boundaries of the Authority, conserve, store,
transport, treat, purify, distribute, sell, and deliver water to or
among persons inside and outside the boundaries of the Authority,
and allocate water among persons participating in the Authority's
groundwater reduction plan whether they are located inside or
outside the Authority's boundaries; enter into contracts with
persons inside or outside the Authority on terms and conditions the
board considers desirable, fair, and advantageous for the
performance of the rights, powers, and authority conferred under
the Act; coordinate water services provided inside, outside, or
into the Authority; and to otherwise administer and enforce the
Act; and

WHEREAS, the Authority has contracted to purchase certain
rights to capacity in treated surface water production and
transmission facilities constructed by the City of Houston, Texas,
under that certain Water Supply Contract, dated December 5, 2003,
by and among Authority (as successor to the Central Harris County
Water Users Consortium) and the City of Houston (the "City of
Houston Contract" ), and by the North Harris County Regional Water
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Authority under that certain Agreement For Joint Financing, Design,
Construction, Operation And Maintenance Of Surface Water
Transmission Facilities, dated November 3, 2003, by and among the
Authority (as successor to the Central Harris County Water Users
Consortium) and the North Harris County Regional Water Authority;
and

WHEREAS, the Authority is in the process of the sale,
issuance and delivery of its revenue bonds to the Texas Water
Development Board ("TWDB Bonds" ) in order to finance the design and
construction of, and acquisition of real property rights needed
for, the first phase of the Authority's treated surface water
distribution system, which system is deemed necessary and
convenient to achieve the objectives of the Authority's ground
water reduction plan relative to the supply of treated surface
water to certain Member Districts on or before January 1, 2010, in
accordance with the requirements of the Subsidence District; and

WHEREAS, the City of Houston Contract provides that, as a
condition to the delivery of water pursuant to the terms and
provisions set forth therein, the Authority shall adopt and
implement a water conservation program consistent with the
applicable requirements of the Texas Commission on Environmental
Quality ("TCEQ") set forth in Subchapter A of Chapter 288, Title
30, Texas Administrative Code ("30 TAC 5 288"), as amended from
time to time; and

WHEREAS, as a condition to the acceptance of delivery of the
TWDB Bonds by the Texas Water Development Board ("TWDB"), the rules
of the TWDB in Chapter 363 of Title 30, Texas Administrative Code,
as amended, provide that the Authority shall adopt and implement a
water conservation program, which may be satisfied through the
adoption of a water conservation program meeting the applicable
requirements of the TCEQ set forth in Subchapter A of 30 TAC 5 288,
as amended from time to time; and

WHEREAS, in order to conserve the available water supply and
protect the integrity of water supply facilities, with particular
regard for domestic water use, sanitation, and fire protection, and
to protect and preserve public health, welfare, and safety and
minimize the adverse impacts of water supply shortage or other
water supply emergency conditions, has additionally considered the
adoption of a drought contingency plan consistent with the
applicable requirements of the TCEQ set forth in Subchapter B of 30
TAC 5 288, as amended from time to time; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Authority ("Board" )

wishes to adopt (a) -a water conservation program consistent with
the applicable requirements of the TCEQ set. forth in Subchapter A

of 30 TAC 5 288, as amended from time to time, (b) a drought
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contingency plan consistent with the requirements of the TCEQ set
forth in Subchapter B of 30 TAC 5 288, and (c) regulations
providing that each Member District of the Authority shall
similarly adopt and implement a water conservation program
consistent with the applicable requirements of the TCEQ set forth
in Subchapter A of 30 TAC 5 288, as amended from time to time;

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AND ORDERED BY THE BOARD OF

DIRECTORS OF THE CENTRAL HARRIS COUNTY REGIONAL WATER AUTHORITY

THAT:

ARTICLE I.
FINDINGS; AUTHORIZATION

Section 1.01: Findings. Each of the recitals stated in this
Resolution Adopting Groundwater Conservation and Drought
Contingency Plan, and Setting Forth Regulations Pertaining to the
Adoption of Water Conservation Plans by Member Districts of the
Central Harris County Regional Water Authority ("Resolution" ) are
hereby adopted as findings of the Board. All statutory
requirements and conditions have been met for the adoption of this
Resolution by the Board, including but not limited to the Open
Meetings Law, Chapter 551, Texas Government Code, as amended, and
Section 49.063 of the Texas Water Code, as amended.

Section 1.02: Authorization. The adoption of this Resolution
is authorized by Sections 8815.102 and 8815.108 of the Code.

ARTICLE II.
DEFINITIONS

Section 2.01: Unless otherwise expressly provided or unless
the context clearly requires otherwise, the following definitions,
together with any supplemental definitions contained herein, shall
apply with equal force herein and in any amendment or supplement
hereto:

Member Districts.

The term "Member Districts" shall have the meaning set forth
in 5 8815.001(8) of the Code.

Water Conservation Plan.

The term "Water Conservation Plan" shall mean a plan setting
forth a water conservation program consistent with the applicable
requirements of the TCEQ set forth in Subchapter A of 30 TAC 5 288,
as amended from time to time.

-3-
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ARTICLE III.
ADOPTION OF AUTHORITY WATER CONSERVATION

AND DROUGHT CONTINGENCY PLAN;

ADOPTION OF WATER CONSERVATION PLANS BY MEMBER DISTRICTS

Section 3.01: Authority Plan. The Authority hereby adopts
that certain Water Conservation and Drought Contingency Plan of
even date herewith, prepared by Pate Engineers, Inc. (the
"Authority Plan" ). ln particular, and without limiting the
foregoing, the Authority adopts the Drought Contingency Plan set
forth in Appendix A to the Authority Plan as if same was set forth
fully herein.

Section 3.02: Member District Plans. Not later that
December 31, 2009, each Member District. shall adopt and implement a
Water Conservation Plan. To the extent that a Member District
provides wholesale water service within or without the Authority,
and water so provided is comprised in whole in part of treated
surface water derived from the Authority's water distribution
system, such Member District shall require its wholesale customer,
to the greatest extent practicable, to implement the water
conservation measures adopted in such Member District's Water
Conservation Plan.

Section 3.03: Incorporation of Resolution in Authority Plan.
A certified copy of this Resolution shall be included as Appendix B
to the Authority Plan.

ARTICLE IV
CIVIL PENALTIES; INJUNCTION

Section 4.01: Civil Penalty. A person or entity that violates
a rule or order of the Authority is subject to a civil penalty of
not more than $5, 000, as determined by the Board, for each
violation or each day of a continuing violation. The Board may set
the penalty based on the severity of the offense; whether such
violation was willful, knowing, reckless or inadvertent; the
history of offenses by such person or entity; and the damages
sustained by the Authority. The Authority may bring an action to
recover the penalty in a district court in Harris County, Texas.
The penalty shall be paid to the Authority.

Section 4.02: Injunction. The Authority may bring an action
for injunctive relief in a district court in Harris County, Texas.
The Authority may bring an action for a civil penalty and
injunctive relief in the same proceeding.
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PASSED AND ADOPTED this the 7 day of May, 2008.

CENTRAL HARRIS COUNTY

REGIONAL WATER AUTHORITY

ATTEST:

By: /s/ Margaret L. Cox
President, Board of Directors

By: /s/ Judge Caston
Secretary, Board of Directors

(SEAL)

192687 f.doc
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APPENDIX C

AUTHORITY MAP
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Retail Water Services



   

Does the applicant provide retail water services?: N



Date/Time Survey Submitted:  3/10/2016 4:19:51 PM

TEXAS WATER DEVELOPMENT BOARD
WATER USE SURVEY

WATER USE IN CALENDAR YEAR:  2015

SYSTEM NAME: CENTRAL HARRIS  COUNTY REGIONAL WATER AUTHORITY SURVEY NUMBER: 1103440

OPERATOR NAME: PRIMARY USED COUNTY: HARRIS

MULTIPLE SURVEY ORG: PRIMARY USED RIVER BASIN: SAN JACINTO

MAILING ADDRESS 1: 1300 POST OAK BLVD STE 1400 ORGANIZATION MAIN PHONE:    -   -    

MAILING ADDRESS 2: MAIN EMAIL:

CITY/STATE/ZIP: HOUSTON TX 77056-    WEB:

INTAKE:

Water Type County Basin Seller Name and/or Seller System River / 
Reservoir

Metered or 
Estimated

Brackish / 
Saline (Y or N) 

% Treated Prior 
to Intake Total Volume (gallons)

SURFACE WATER PURCHASED CITY OF 
HOUSTON

GENERAL 
DISTRIBUTION 

SYSTEM 
(HOUSTON) & 
CWA SYSTEMS

M N 100.00 677,018,000

JANUARY FEBRUARY MARCH APRIL MAY JUNE JULY AUGUST SEPTEMBER OCTOBER NOVEMBER DECEMBER

56,840,000 50,229,000 55,951,000 57,680,000 55,455,000 55,219,000 60,871,000 58,249,000 55,987,000 54,828,000 55,846,000 59,863,000

SALES:

BUYER
SALE TYPE 

(MUNICIPAL or 
INDUSTRIAL)

COUNTY NAME BASIN NAME WATER 
TYPE

AQUIFER NAME 
(if GW)

SURFACE WATER 
Name (if SW)

RAW or 
TREATED

TOTAL VOLUME 
(GALLONS)

HARRIS COUNTY MUD 217 M SURFACE 
WATER

Treated 61,823,000

HARRIS COUNTY MUD 150 M SURFACE 
WATER

Treated 280,558,000

HARRIS COUNTY MUD 200 M SURFACE 
WATER

Treated 266,951,000

RANKIN ROAD WEST MUD M SURFACE 
WATER

Treated 60,050,000

WATER SYSTEM INFORMATION:
Estimated full-time residential population served directly by this system 28,350

CONTACTS:
LAST NAME FIRST NAME TITLE PHONE PHONE EXT. EMAIL

Khouw Marcel Authority Engineer 713-462-3178 7293 mkhouw@idseg.com

 



Potable Water Services
   

Is the applicant a retail public utility that provides potable water?: N



1

Khouw, Marcel

To: Cameron King

Subject: RE: Water Loss Audit form

 

From: Daniel Rice [mailto:Daniel.Rice@twdb.texas.gov]  

Sent: Tuesday, May 10, 2016 4:24 PM 
To: Cameron King 

Subject: Water Loss Audit form 

 

Cameron – unfortunately we don’t have Central Harris County Regional Water Authority in our online application to fill 

out the water loss audit. The water loss audit is not set up for wholesale water providers. It is only required of retail 

public utilities. Either way, here’s a paper copy, if you need help with the calculations let me know. Also it’d be nice to 

know who’s asking for this as part of a loan/bond request.  

 

D. Daniel Rice 

Water Loss Program Specialist 

Conservation & Innovative Water Technologies 

Daniel.Rice@twdb.texas.gov 

Office: 512-463-0987 | Fax: 512-936-0816 

Water Loss Audit Web Page 

 

 
 

 



Provide Wastewater Services
   

Does the applicant provide wastewater services?: N

Provide Regional or Wholesale Water Services
   

Does the applicant provide regional or wholesale water services?: Y

   

List the top TEN customers of the system by annual usage in gallons and percentage of total

usage, including whether any are in bankruptcy.

   

   

Comments: 

Customer Name Annual Usage (gal) Percent of Usage Bankruptcy (Y/N)
HC MUD 200 448,720,000 26.21% N
HC MUD 150 281,624,000 16.45% N
Fallbrook UD 239,836,000 14.01% N
HC MUD 33 206,063,000 12.04% N
HC MUD 304 161,131,000 9.41% N
HC UD 16 150,003,000 8.76% N
HC MUD 217 61,840,000 3.61% N
Rankin Rd. West MUD
(2)

60,050,000 3.51% N

HC MUD 205 53,190,000 3.11% N
HC MUD 215 49,465,000 2.89% N



   

List the top TEN customers of the system by gross revenues and percent of total revenues,

including whether any are in bankruptcy.

   
Customer Name Annual Revenue Percent of Revenue Bankruptcy (Y/N)

HC MUD 200 $1,088,667.94 29.95% N
HC MUD 150 $650,884.66 17.90% N
Fallbrook UD $476,043.96 13.10% N
HC MUD 33 $409,257.03 11.26% N
HC MUD 304 $329,830.41 9.07% N
HC UD 16 $299,079.13 8.23% N
HC MUD 217 $146,780.42 4.04% N
Rankin Rd West MUD
(2)

$136,347.5 3.75% N

HC MUD 215 $98,281.75 2.70% N
HC MUD 205 $0 0.00% N



   

Provide a summary of the wholesale contracts with customers.

   

Debt
   

Disclose all issues that may affect the project or the applicant's ability to issue and/or repay debt

(such as anticipated lawsuits, judgments, bankruptcies, major customer closings, etc).:  The

Central Harris County Regional Water Authority does not anticipate any lawsuits that would

adversely impact its ability to make timely debt service payments.  The Central Harris County

Regional Water Authority has no outstanding judgements and is not aware of any customer

bankruptcies or major customer closings that would impact its ability to make timely payment of its

debt service on its previously issued bonds or the Series 2016 Bonds.

 

   

Has the applicant ever defaulted on any debt?: N

Taxing Authority
   

Does the applicant have taxing authority?: N

Tax Assessed Valuations

   

Contract
Type

Minimum
Annual
Amount

Usage Fee
Per 1000
Gallons

Annual
Operations

and
Maintenance

Annual
Capital
Costs

Annual Debt
Service

Other

N/A $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
N/A $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
N/A $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
N/A $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
N/A $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
N/A $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
N/A $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
N/A $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
N/A $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
N/A $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Fiscal Year
Ending

Net
Taxable

Assessed
Value ($)

Tax Rate
($)

General
Fund ($)

Interest &
Sinking
Fund ($)

Tax Levy
($)

Percentage
Current

Collections
(%)

Percentage
Total

Collections
(%)

2016
2015
2014
2013
2012



   

Tax Assessed Values Comments: 



TaxRateTable N/A



TaxAssessedValueByClass_0 N/A



TaxAssessedValueByClass_1 N/A



TaxAssessedValueByClass_2 N/A



TaxAssessedValueByClass_3 N/A



TaxAssessedValueByClass_4 N/A



Top Ten Taxpayers
   

   

   

Top Ten Taxpayer Comments: 

Tax Rate and Sales Tax
   

   

Provide the maximum tax rate permitted by law per $100 of property value.: 

   

Does the applicant collect sales tax?: N

   

Is the proposed loan tax-exempt?: N

Taxpayer Name Assessed Value Percent of Total Bankruptcy (Y/N)



2016CashFlowForSWIFTBondApplication30YearWithRateIncreases

Surplus Fund Annual Annual Non-Bonded Bonded Surplus Surplus Funds Funds for Adjusted Rate Adjusted Additional Accumuled All Funds
Beginning Interest Operating Operating Debt Service Net Capitalized Debt DSRF Fund Reserve Rate Covenant & Covenant Rate Covenant Bonds DSRF Reserve

Year Balance (a) Earnings (b) Revenue (c) Expenditures (d) Cost (e) Revenues Interest (g) Service (f) Deposit Balance Balance (h) Add'l Bonds Test (i) Test (j) Test (k) Test (l) Deposit Balance

2015 $3,108,619 $11,304 $3,635,172 $1,564,800 $0 $2,012,877 $1,410,870 $3,710,626 117% $4,386,165 1.43 1.87 $1,412,972 162%
2016 $3,707,116 $12,802 $4,153,600 $1,583,635 $0 $2,582,767 $445,582 $1,583,979 $5,151,486 136% $5,719,993 1.63 3.61 4.76 $1,413,832 176%
2017 $5,151,486 $16,514 $5,028,600 $1,583,635 $0 $3,461,479 $375,273 $2,156,451 $40,447 $6,791,341 132% $7,734,254 1.61 3.59 5.00 $1,454,279 169%
2018 $6,791,341 $21,290 $5,028,600 $1,583,635 $0 $3,466,255 $1,067,622 $3,304,237 $270,206 $7,750,775 135% $10,252,821 1.05 3.10 3.75 $1,724,485 172%
2019 $7,750,775 $24,321 $5,991,100 $1,583,635 $0 $4,431,786 $1,075,400 $3,918,520 $253,086 $9,086,355 144% $11,217,029 1.13 2.86 3.84 $1,977,571 183%
2020 $9,086,355 $28,309 $5,991,100 $1,583,635 $106,429 $4,329,345 $539,400 $4,356,248 $259,591 $9,339,261 143% $13,518,141 0.99 3.10 4.21 $2,237,161 183%
2021 $9,339,261 $29,505 $6,428,600 $1,583,635 $106,429 $4,768,041 $508,000 $4,635,094 $225,427 $9,754,781 148% $13,668,606 1.03 2.95 4.14 $2,462,588 192%
2022 $9,754,781 $31,107 $6,428,600 $1,583,635 $106,429 $4,769,643 $178,000 $4,689,586 $225,426 $9,787,412 148% $14,522,822 1.02 3.10 4.40 $2,688,014 195%
2023 $9,787,412 $31,752 $6,428,600 $1,583,635 $106,429 $4,770,288 $4,694,606 $225,426 $9,637,668 146% $14,557,055 1.02 3.10 $2,913,440 197%
2024 $9,637,668 $31,941 $6,428,600 $1,583,635 $106,429 $4,770,478 $4,697,154 $225,426 $9,485,565 143% $14,407,957 1.02 3.07 $3,138,866 198%
2025 $9,485,565 $32,125 $6,428,600 $1,583,635 $106,429 $4,770,661 $4,697,479 $225,426 $9,333,321 146% $14,256,043 1.02 3.03 $3,364,292 199%
2026 $9,333,321 $31,744 $6,428,600 $1,583,635 $106,429 $4,770,280 $4,695,781 $9,407,820 147% $14,103,982 1.02 3.00 $3,364,292 200%
2027 $9,407,820 $31,930 $6,428,600 $1,583,635 $106,429 $4,770,467 $4,691,792 $9,486,494 149% $14,178,100 1.02 3.02 $3,364,292 201%
2028 $9,486,494 $32,127 $6,428,600 $1,583,635 $106,429 $4,770,663 $4,695,390 $9,561,767 150% $14,256,960 1.02 3.04 $3,364,292 202%
2029 $9,561,767 $32,315 $6,428,600 $1,583,635 $106,429 $4,770,851 $4,696,337 $9,636,281 194% $14,332,430 1.02 3.05 $3,364,292 261%
2030 $9,636,281 $32,501 $6,428,600 $1,583,635 $106,429 $4,771,038 $3,284,513 $11,122,805 223% $14,407,132 1.45 4.39 $3,364,292 291%
2031 $11,122,805 $36,218 $6,428,600 $1,583,635 $106,429 $4,774,754 $3,291,960 $12,605,599 253% $15,893,843 1.45 4.83 $3,364,292 321%
2032 $12,605,599 $39,925 $6,428,600 $1,583,635 $106,429 $4,778,461 $3,288,353 $14,095,706 283% $17,380,353 1.45 5.29 $3,364,292 351%
2033 $14,095,706 $43,650 $6,428,600 $1,583,635 $106,429 $4,782,186 $3,284,138 $15,593,754 313% $18,874,167 1.46 5.75 $3,364,292 381%
2034 $15,593,754 $47,395 $6,428,600 $1,583,635 $106,429 $4,785,931 $3,289,278 $17,090,407 344% $20,375,940 1.46 6.19 $3,364,292 411%
2035 $17,090,407 $51,137 $6,428,600 $1,583,635 $106,429 $4,789,673 $3,283,620 $18,596,460 373% $21,876,338 1.46 6.66 $3,364,292 441%
2036 $18,596,460 $54,902 $6,428,600 $1,583,635 $106,429 $4,793,438 $3,292,410 $20,097,487 404% $23,386,133 1.46 7.10 $3,364,292 471%
2037 $20,097,487 $58,654 $6,428,600 $1,583,635 $106,429 $4,797,191 $3,289,509 $21,605,169 434% $24,890,925 1.46 7.57 $3,364,292 502%
2038 $21,605,169 $62,424 $6,428,600 $1,583,635 $106,429 $4,800,960 $3,286,007 $23,120,121 464% $26,402,359 1.46 8.03 $3,364,292 531%
2039 $23,120,121 $66,211 $6,428,600 $1,583,635 $106,429 $4,804,747 $3,296,904 $24,627,964 495% $27,921,081 1.46 8.47 $3,364,292 562%
2040 $24,627,964 $69,981 $6,428,600 $1,583,635 $106,429 $4,808,517 $3,286,699 $26,149,781 525% $29,432,711 1.46 8.96 $3,364,292 593%
2041 $26,149,781 $73,785 $6,428,600 $1,583,635 $106,429 $4,812,321 $3,291,037 $27,671,065 556% $30,958,298 1.46 9.41 $3,364,292 624%
2042 $27,671,065 $77,588 $6,428,600 $1,583,635 $106,429 $4,816,125 $3,284,077 $29,203,113 586% $32,483,387 1.47 9.89 $3,364,292 654%
2043 $29,203,113 $81,419 $6,428,600 $1,583,635 $106,429 $4,819,955 $3,291,507 $30,731,560 617% $34,019,237 1.46 10.34 $3,364,292 684%
2044 $30,731,560 $85,240 $6,428,600 $1,583,635 $106,429 $4,823,776 $3,292,811 $32,262,525 661% $35,551,515 1.46 10.80 $3,364,292 730%
2045 $32,262,525 $89,067 $6,428,600 $1,583,635 $0 $4,934,032 $3,298,199 $33,898,357 785% $37,086,300 1.50 11.24 $3,364,292 863%
2046 $33,898,357 $93,157 $6,428,600 $1,583,635 $0 $4,938,122 $2,732,494 $36,103,984 941% $38,832,389 1.81 14.21 $3,364,292 #DIV/0!
2047 $36,103,984 $90,260 $6,428,600 $1,583,635 $0 $4,935,225 $2,254,009 $38,785,200 1513% $41,042,106 2.19 18.21

2048 $38,785,200 $96,963 $6,428,600 $1,583,635 $0 $4,941,928 $979,259 $42,747,869 1896% $43,720,425 5.05 44.65

2049 $42,747,869 $106,870 $6,428,600 $1,583,635 $0 $4,951,835 $671,022 $47,028,681 2586% $47,689,797 7.38 71.07

2050 $47,028,681 $117,572 $6,428,600 $1,583,635 $0 $4,962,537 $235,122 $51,756,096 #DIV/0! $51,980,516 21.11 221.08

(i) Per 2008/2015 Bond Resolutions. Needs to be 1.25 times average annual debt service including debt service attributable to additional bonds.
(j) Rate covenant test per Texas Attorney General BUT NOT PER CHCRWA's BOND RESOLUTION - per discussion with Bond Counsel.
(k) This is an NHCRWA test - CHCRWA covenant is slightly different.
(l) Must be at least 1.25 times

(g) Capitalized interest funded with each Series of Bonds. Dollar amounts reflected in years in which dollars will be actually used for debt service.
(h) Equal to the General Fund plus Surplus Funds Ending Balance divided by the next year's total cash outflow for operating costs plus non bond debt service plus bonded debt service.

(c) Based on 2015 audited operating revenue with rate increases as noted above.  Assumes no growth in water usage.  See attached schedule.
(d) Reflects the 2015 audited results; NO GROWTH IN WATER USAGE ASSUMED.
(e)  Reflects Authority's share of Luce Bayou capital costs estimated at $2 million per COH 9/30/2011 letter.

(f) Reflects actual results of Series 2008 and Series 2015 Bond sales to TWDB and assumes sale of Series 2016-2020 Bonds to TWDB - see attached schedule.

CENTRAL HARRIS COUNTY REGIONAL WATER AUTHORITY
2016 Projected Annual Cash Flow Analysis, Available Reserves Analysis, Rate Covenant Test and "Adjusted" Additional Bonds Test with 2015-2020 TWDB SWIFT Bonds

(a) Reflects approximate 1/1/2016 cash and investment balances per 12/31/2015 audited financial statements.
(b) Projected at 1/4 of 1.0%

5/9/2016

Assumes Constant Water Usage With $0.50 Rate Increase in January 1, 2017, $0.55 Rate Increase in January 1, 2019, and $0.25 Rate Increase in January 1. 2021

 





















2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

Operating Revenues
Pumpage fees 2,088,386$    1,577,942$    1,670,501$     1,714,575$  1,308,338$        
Surface water 1,546,786      1,283,329      1,031,107       820,416       1,051,824

Total operating revenues 3,635,172      2,861,271      2,701,608       2,534,991    2,360,162          

Operating Expenses
Purchased water service 1,087,962      1,040,271      868,017          593,272       745,098             
Professional fees 305,000         294,972         233,025          221,344       219,048             
Contracted services 59,196           61,297           51,320            49,545         56,577               
Repairs and maintenance 72,053           2,263             218,828          - - 
Other expenditures 98,084           95,134           97,356            89,141         86,787               
Depreciation 480,273         563,275         397,271          284,285       248,385             

Total operating expenses 2,102,568 2,057,212 1,865,817 1,237,587 1,355,895

Operating Income 1,532,604 804,059 835,791 1,297,404 1,004,267

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
Investment income 6,985             7,482             29,286            41,926         80,927
Other income - - - 6,512           - 
Debt issuance costs (398,558) - - - - 
Interest and fees (435,248)        (434,520)        (447,639)        (484,300)     (456,861)            

Total nonoperating expenses (826,821)        (427,038)        (418,353)        (435,862)     (375,934)            

Change in Net Position 705,783         377,021         417,438          861,542       628,333             

Net Position
Beginning of year 6,153,764      5,776,743      5,895,270       5,033,728    4,405,395          
Adjustment for adoption of new accounting 
standard (535,965)        

Beginning of year, as restated 5,359,305       

End of year 6,859,547$    6,153,764$    5,776,743$     5,895,270$  5,033,728$        

CHCRWA 5 Year Comparative System Operating Statement

Attachment Part C46
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Independent Auditor's Report 

Board of Directors 

Central Harris County Regional Water Authority 

Harris County, Texas 

We have audited the accompanying basic financial statements of Central Harris County Regional Water 

Authority (the Authority), which are comprised of a statement of net position as of December 31, 2015, 

and statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net position and cash flows for the year then ended 

and the related notes to the basic financial statements, as listed in the table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 

accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 

the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 

presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 

error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.  We 

conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 

America.  Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 

about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 

the financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the 

assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.  

In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation 

and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in 

the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's 

internal control.  Accordingly, we express no such opinion.  An audit also includes evaluating the 

appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates 

made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 

our audit opinion. 

Opinions 

In our opinion, the basic financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 

financial position of the Authority as of December 31, 2015, and the changes in its financial position and 

its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the 

United States of America. 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's 

discussion and analysis listed in the table of contents be presented to supplement the basic financial 

statements.  Such information, although not part of the basic financial statements, is required by the 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting 

for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic or historical context.  

We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with 

auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of 

management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for 

consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements and other 

knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.  We do not express an opinion 

or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with 

sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Supplementary Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that 

collectively comprise the Authority's basic financial statements.  The accompanying supplementary 

information listed in the table of contents is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a 

required part of the basic financial statements.  Such information has not been subjected to the auditing 

procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an 

opinion or provide any assurance on it. 

 

Houston, Texas 

May 10, 2016 
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Introduction 

This management's discussion and analysis of the financial performance of Central Harris County Regional 

Water Authority (the Authority) provides an overview of the Authority's financial activities for the year ended 

December 31, 2015.  It should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial statements of the 

Authority. 

Using This Annual Report 

The Authority's basic financial statements consist of three statements – a statement of net position; a statement 

of revenues, expenses and changes in net position; and a statement of cash flows.  These statements provide 

information about the activities of the Authority, including resources held by the Authority but restricted for 

specific purposes by creditors or participating entities.  The Authority is accounted for as a business-type 

activity and presents its financial statements using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual 

basis of accounting. 

The Statement of Net Position and Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 

One of the most important questions asked about the Authority's finances is, "Is the Authority as a whole better 

or worse off as a result of the year's activities?"  The statement of net position and statement of revenues, 

expenses and changes in net position report information about the Authority's resources and its activities in a 

way that helps answer this question.  These statements include all restricted and unrestricted assets and liabilities 

using the accrual basis of accounting.  Using the accrual basis of accounting means that all of the current year's 

revenues and expenses are taken into account, regardless of when cash is received or paid. 

These two statements report the Authority's net position and changes in them.  The Authority's total net position 

– the difference between assets and liabilities – is one measure of the Authority's financial health or financial 

position.  Over time, increases or decreases in the Authority's net position are an indicator of whether its 

financial health is improving or deteriorating.  Other nonfinancial factors, such as changes in the Authority's 

service area, changes in legislation and regulations, measures of the quantity and quality of services provided to 

its participants, and local economic factors should also be considered to assess the overall financial health of the 

Authority. 

The Statement of Cash Flows 

The statement of cash flows reports cash receipts, cash payments, and net changes in cash and cash equivalents 

resulting from four defined types of activities.  It provides answers to such questions as where did cash come 

from, what was cash used for and what was the change in cash and cash equivalents during the reporting period. 
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The Authority's Net Position 

The Authority's overall financial position and activities for the past two years are summarized as follows, based 

on the information included in the financial statements. 

2015 2014

Current assets 16,934,455$        6,132,822$          

Capital assets 17,557,943          17,698,688          

Total assets 34,492,398$        23,831,510$        

Long-term liabilities 26,110,000$        16,305,000$        

Current liabilities 1,522,851            1,372,746            

Total liabilities 27,632,851          17,677,746          

Net position:

Net investment in capital assets 461,292               1,038,440            

Restricted 1,682,372            1,892,448            

Unrestricted 4,715,883            3,222,876            

Total net position 6,859,547$          6,153,764$          

Summary of Assets, Liabilities and Net Position

 

Operating Results and Changes in Net Position 

The total net position of the Authority increased by $705,783, or about 12 percent, due to pumpage fees and 

surface water fees received from participants in excess of general expenses of the Authority. 

2015 2014

Operating revenues:

Charges for services 3,635,172$          2,861,271$          

Operating expenses:

Administrative expenses 1,622,295            1,493,937            

Depreciation and amortization 480,273               563,275               

Total operating expenses 2,102,568            2,057,212            

Operating income 1,532,604            804,059               

Summary of Revenues, Expenses and Change in Net Position
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2015 2014

Summary of Revenues, Expenses and Change in Net Position (Continued)

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):

Investment income 6,985$                 7,482$                 

Bond issuance costs (398,558) -                           

Interest and fees (435,248)              (434,520)              

Total nonoperating expenses (826,821)              (427,038)              

Change in net position 705,783               377,021               

Net position, beginning of year 6,153,764            5,776,743            

Net position, end of year 6,859,547$          6,153,764$          

 

Operating Income 

The first component of the overall change in the Authority's net position is its operating income or loss – 

generally, the difference between charges to participants and the expenses incurred to perform services.   

The primary components of the operating income are related to charges to participants to pay the operating 

expenses of the Authority. 

Nonoperating Revenues and Expenses 

Nonoperating revenues and expenses consist primarily of investment income and interest expense. 

The Authority's Cash Flows 

Changes in the Authority's cash flows are consistent with changes in operating income and nonoperating 

revenues and expenses, as discussed earlier. 

Capital Assets and Debt Administration 

Capital Assets 

Capital assets held by the Authority at the end of the current and previous fiscal years are summarized as 

follows. 



Central Harris County Regional Water Authority  
Management's Discussion and Analysis (Continued) 

December 31, 2015 

 6 

2015 2014

Land and improvements 750,725$             750,725$             

Construction in progress 339,528               -                           

Water facilities 16,467,690          16,947,963          

Total capital assets 17,557,943$        17,698,688$        

Capital Assets (Net of Accumulated Depreciation)

 
During the current year, additions to capital assets were as follows: 

Construction in progress related to expansion of treated water facilities

with the City of Houston 339,528$             

 
Debt 

The changes in the debt position of the Authority during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2015, is 

summarized as follows: 

Long-term debt payable, beginning of year 17,290,000$        

Increases in long-term debt 10,805,000          

Decreases in long-term debt (985,000)              

Long-term debt payable, end of year 27,110,000$        

 
The Authority's Series 2008 and 2015 bonds are not rated. 
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Assets

Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 16,616,373$        

Due from participants 317,157               

Prepaid expenses 925                      

Total current assets 16,934,455          

Noncurrent Assets

Capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation):

Land and improvements 750,725               

Construction in progress 339,528               

Interest in water facilities 16,467,690          

Total noncurrent assets 17,557,943          

Total assets 34,492,398$        

Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Accounts payable 273,987$             

Accrued interest payable 185,473               

Due to others 63,391

Current portion of long-term debt 1,000,000            

Total current liabilities 1,522,851            

Long-term Debt

Due after one year 26,110,000          

Total liabilities 27,632,851          

Net Position

Net investment in capital assets 461,292               

Restricted for:

Debt service 1,200,942            

Capital acquisitions 481,430               

Unrestricted 4,715,883            

Total net position 6,859,547$          
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Operating Revenues

Pumpage fees 2,088,386$          

Surface water 1,546,786            

Total operating revenues 3,635,172            

Operating Expenses

Purchased water service 1,087,962            

Professional fees 305,000               

Contracted services 59,196                 

Repairs and maintenance 72,053                 

Other expenditures 98,084                 

Depreciation 480,273               

Total operating expenses 2,102,568            

Operating Income 1,532,604            

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)

Investment income 6,985                   

Debt issuance costs (398,558)

Interest and fees (435,248)              

Total nonoperating expenses (826,821)              

Change in Net Position 705,783               

Net Position

Beginning of year 6,153,764            

End of year 6,859,547$          
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Statement of Cash Flows 

Year Ended December 31, 2015 

See Notes to Financial Statements 9 

Operating Activities

Receipts from participants 3,804,421$          

Payments for service operations (1,557,718)           

Net cash provided by operating activities 2,246,703            

Capital and Related Financing Activities

Proceeds from long-term debt 10,805,000          

Principal paid on long-term debt (985,000)              

Interest paid on long-term debt (427,221)              

Debt issuance costs (398,558)              

Purchase of capital assets (339,528)              

Net cash provided by capital and related financing activities 8,654,693            

Investing Activity

Interest and other income 6,985                   

Net cash provided by investing activity 6,985                   

Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 10,908,381          

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 5,707,992            

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year 16,616,373$        

Reconciliation of Net Operating Revenues to Net Cash

   Provided by Operating Activities

Operating income 1,532,604$          

Depreciation and amortization 480,273               

Changes in:

Deposits held for others 63,391                 

Participant receivables 105,858               

Prepaid expenses 890                      

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 63,687                 

Net cash provided by operating activities 2,246,703$          
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Note 1: Nature of Operations and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Central Harris County Regional Water Authority (the Authority) was created by House Bill 

Number 3181 (the Bill) of the 79th Legislature of the State of Texas, Regular Session, effective 

September 1, 2005 (inception), now codified in Chapter 8815, Texas Special District Local Laws 

Code.  Chapter 8815 authorizes the Authority to purchase, construct or otherwise acquire surface and 

underground water supplies.  The Authority may also enter into contracts with others for the supply 

and transport of water, but may not impose, levy, assess or collect taxes on property. 

The Authority is governed by a Board of Directors (the Board) consisting of five individuals who are 

appointed by the entities participating in the Authority.  The Board sets the policies of the Authority.  

The accounting and reporting policies of the Authority conform to accounting principles generally 

accepted in the United States of America for state and local governments, as defined by the 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB).  The following is a summary of the significant 

accounting and reporting policies of the Authority: 

The Authority charges a fee, based on the amount of water pumped from the well, to the owner of wells 

located within the boundaries of the Authority, unless exempted.  These fees enable the Authority to 

fulfill its purpose and regulatory functions, as set forth in the act.  Effective July 1, 2014, the pumpage 

fee charge was $1.61 per 1,000 gallons of water pumped from each well or transported into the 

Authority from outside and the surface water fee was $1.95 per 1,000 gallons of surface water supplied.  

Effective July 1, 2015, the pumpage or transportation fee was increased to $2.31 per 1,000 gallons of 

water pumped from each well and the surface water fee increased to $2.65 per 1,000 gallons of surface 

water supplied.  These rates are subject to future changes. 

Reporting Entity 

There are no component units that are legally separate entities for which the Authority is considered 

to be financially accountable.  Accountability is defined as the Authority's substantive appointment 

of the voting majority of the component unit's governing board.  Furthermore, to be financially 

accountable, the Authority must be able to impose its will upon the component unit or there must be 

a possibility that the component unit may provide specific financial benefits to, or impose specific 

financial burdens on, the Authority.  

Basis of Accounting and Presentation 

The financial statements of the Authority have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting 

using the economic resources management focus.  Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets and 

liabilities from exchange and exchange-like transactions are recognized when the exchange 

transaction takes place.  Operating revenues and expenses include exchange transactions.   
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Investment income and interest on capital assets-related debt are included in nonoperating revenues 

and expenses.  The Authority first applies restricted net position when an expense or outlay is 

incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net position is available. 

The Authority prepares its financial statements as a business-type activity in conformity with 

applicable pronouncements of GASB.   

Pension Costs   

The Authority does not participate in a pension plan and, therefore, has no pension costs. 

Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted 

in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect 

the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the 

date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses/expenditures 

during the reporting period.  Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Cash Equivalents 

The Authority considers all liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less to be 

cash equivalents.  At December 31, 2015, cash equivalents consisted primarily of TexPool and 

certificate of deposit accounts. 

Capital Assets 

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment and infrastructure, are reported in the 

financial statements.  Capital assets are defined by the Authority as assets with an individual cost of 

$5,000 or more and an estimated useful life of two years or more.  Purchased or constructed capital 

assets are reported at cost or estimated historical cost.  Donated capital assets are recorded at their 

estimated fair value at the date of donation.   

The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially 

extend the asset lives are not capitalized. 

Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives as 

shown below: 

 Years 

  

Interest in water production and distribution facilities 40 
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Long-term Obligations 

In the financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities.  

Premiums and discounts on bonds are recognized as a component of long-term liabilities and 

amortized over the life of the related debt using the effective interest rate method.  Bonds payable are 

reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount.   

Debt Issuance Costs 

Debt issuance costs, other than prepaid insurance, do not meet the definition of an asset since the 

costs are not applicable to a future period and therefore are recognized as an expense/expenditure in 

the period incurred. 

Net Position 

Net position of the Authority is classified in three components.  Net investment in capital assets 

consists of capital assets net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of 

borrowings used to finance the purchase or construction of those assets.  Restricted expendable net 

position is noncapital assets that must be used for a particular purpose as specified by creditors, 

donors or participants external to the Authority, including amounts held as required by bond 

indentures, reduced by the outstanding balances of any related borrowings.  Unrestricted net position 

is remaining assets less remaining liabilities that do not meet the definition of invested in capital 

assets, net of related debt or restricted expendable.  When both restricted and unrestricted resources 

are available for use, generally, it is the Authority's policy to use restricted resources first. 

The components of net investment in capital assets are as follows: 

Capital assets, net 17,557,943$        

Long-term debt (27,110,000)         

Accrued interest payable on long-term debt (185,473)              

Unexpended bond proceeds for construction 10,198,822          

Total 461,292$             

 

Note 2: Deposits, Investments and Investment Income 

Deposits 

Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, a government's deposits may not 

be returned to it.  The Authority's deposit policy for custodial credit risk requires compliance with 

the provisions of state law and the Authority's investment policy.  
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State law requires collateralization of all deposits with federal depository insurance; a surety bond; 

bonds and other obligations of the U.S. Treasury, U.S. agencies or instrumentalities of the State of 

Texas; or certain collateralized mortgage obligations directly issued by a federal agency or 

instrumentality of the United States, the underlying security for which is guaranteed by an agency or 

instrumentality of the United States. 

At December 31, 2015, none of the Authority's bank balances were exposed to custodial credit risk. 

Investments 

The Authority may legally invest in obligations of the United States or its agencies and 

instrumentalities, direct obligations of Texas or its agencies or instrumentalities, collateralized 

mortgage obligations directly issued by a federal agency or instrumentality of the United States, the 

underlying security for which is guaranteed by an agency or instrumentality of the United States, 

other obligations guaranteed as to principal and interest by the State of Texas or the United States or 

their agencies and instrumentalities, including obligations that are fully guaranteed or insured by the 

Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or by the explicit full faith and credit of the United States, 

obligations of states, agencies and counties and other political subdivisions with an investment rating 

not less than "A," insured or collateralized certificates of deposit, and certain bankers' acceptances, 

repurchase agreements, mutual funds, commercial paper, guaranteed investment contracts and 

investment pools. 

The Authority's investment policy may be more restrictive than the Public Funds Investment Act. 

The Authority invests in TexPool, an external investment pool that is not registered with the 

Securities and Exchange Commission.  The State Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of 

Texas has oversight of TexPool. 

At December 31, 2015, the Authority had the following investments and maturities: 

Less Than More Than

Type Fair Value 1 1-5 6-10 10

Money market

   mutual fund 8,825,911$     8,825,911$     -$                    -$                    -$                    

TexPool 2,632,665       2,632,665       -                      -                      -                      

Total 11,458,576$   11,458,576$   0$                   0$                   0$                   

Maturities in Years

 
Interest Rate Risk.  As a means of limiting its exposure to fair value losses arising from rising 

interest rates, the Authority's investment policy does not allow investments in certain 

mortgage-backed securities, collateralized mortgage obligations with a final maturity date in 
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excess of 10 years and interest rate indexed collateralized mortgage obligations.  The external 

investment pool is presented as an investment with a maturity of less than one year because it is 

redeemable in full immediately. 

Credit Risk.  Credit risk is the risk that the issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not 

fulfill its obligations.  At December 31, 2015, the Authority's investments in a money market mutual 

fund and TexPool were rated "AAAm" by Standard & Poor's. 

Summary of Carrying Values 

The carrying values of deposits and investments shown above are included in the statement of net 

position as cash and cash equivalents.  

Investment Income 

Investment income of $6,985 for the year ended December 31, 2015, consisted of interest income. 

Note 3: Capital Assets 

A summary of changes in capital assets for the year ended December 31, 2015, is presented below: 

Balances,

Beginning

of Year Additions

Balances,

End

of Year

Capital assets, non-depreciable:

Land and improvements 750,725$           -$                       750,725$           

Construction in progress -                         339,528             339,528             

Total capital assets, non-depreciable 750,725 339,528 1,090,253

Capital assets, depreciable:

Water production and distribution 

   facilities 19,154,896        -                         19,154,896        

Less accumulated depreciation:

Water production and distribution 

   facilities (2,206,933)         (480,273)            (2,687,206)         

Total governmental activities, net 17,698,688$      (140,745)$          17,557,943$      
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Note 4: Long-term Liabilities 

Changes in long-term liabilities for the year ended December 31, 2015, were as follows: 

Balances,

Beginning

of Year Increases Decreases

Balances,

End

of Year

Amounts

Due in

One Year

Bonds payable:

Revenue bonds 17,290,000$  10,805,000$ 985,000$       27,110,000$  1,000,000$    

 
Revenue Bonds 

Amounts outstanding, December 31, 2015

Interest rates

Maturity dates, serially 

beginning/ending

Interest payment dates

Callable dates*

Series 2008 Series 2015

$16,305,000

1.3030% to 2.9220%

$10,805,000

0.45% to 3.21%

February 1/August 1

February 1, 2026

February 1/August 1

August 1, 2018

2016/2029

August 1,

2017/2045

August 1,

 
*Or any date thereafter, callable at par plus accrued interest to the date of redemption. 

Annual Debt Service Requirements 

The following schedule shows the annual debt service requirements to pay principal and interest on 

revenue bonds outstanding at December 31, 2015. 
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Year Principal Interest Total

2016 1,000,000$          583,980$             1,583,980$          

2017 1,290,000            664,829               1,954,829            

2018 1,315,000            644,407               1,959,407            

2019 1,340,000            621,630               1,961,630            

2020 1,370,000            596,613               1,966,613            

2021-2025 7,305,000            2,507,365            9,812,365            

2026-2030 6,895,000            1,520,011            8,415,011            

2031-2035 1,870,000            911,404               2,781,404            

2036-2040 2,170,000            616,504               2,786,504            

2041-2045 2,555,000            251,519               2,806,519            

Total 27,110,000$        8,918,262$          36,028,262$        

 
The bonds are payable from and secured by a first lien on and pledge of Pledged Revenues (as 

defined in the Bond Order) to be received from participants.  The bonds are special obligations  

of the Authority and do not constitute a general obligation of the Authority. 

Note 5: Significant Bond Order and Texas Water Development Board Requirements 

A. The Bond Order establishes a debt service reserve fund to be maintained as long as the bonds 

are outstanding.  The Authority is to maintain a reserve in the debt service fund equal to the 

average annual sum payable in respect of the principal and interest scheduled to become due 

on all bonds outstanding at the time of such computation.  At December 31, 2015, the required 

reserve fund balance is $1,200,942. 

B. The Bond Order establishes a surplus revenues fund to be maintained as long as the bonds are 

outstanding.  The surplus revenues fund contains any net revenues remaining in or accrued by 

the general fund at the end of each fiscal year, after payment of operation and maintenance 

expenses and making required deposits, including deposits to the debt service fund and the 

debt service reserve fund.  The calculation of surplus revenues is based on net revenues of the 

general fund; including revenues, expenditures, transfers from capital projects fund to 

reimburse the general fund for capital activities; and transfers to the debt service fund and to 

the debt service reserve fund.  At December 31, 2015, the surplus revenues fund retained is 

$4,388,786. 

C. The Authority has covenanted that it will at all times keep insured such parts of the system 

that are customarily insured by municipal corporations and political subdivisions in Texas.  At 

December 31, 2015, the Authority has general liability coverage of $3,000,000 and pollution 

liability coverage of $2,000,000. 
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Note 6: City of Houston 

On November 25, 2003, Harris County Municipal Utility District No. 33 (District No. 33), as 

Operating District for the Central Harris County Water Users Consortium (the Consortium), 

predecessor to the Authority, entered into a Water Supply Contract (the Contract) with the City of 

Houston (the City) for an initial term of 40 years.  Pursuant to the Contract, the Authority purchases 

potable treated surface water from the City for distribution and use for domestic, commercial and 

other purposes.  The City is responsible for the design, construction, ownership, maintenance and 

delivery of surface water, pursuant to said Contract.  The Authority, in cooperation with the North 

Harris County Regional Water Authority (the North Authority), is responsible for the design, 

construction, ownership, maintenance and operation of facilities downstream of the point(s) of 

delivery.  The City will make available to the Authority at the point(s) of delivery the amount of 

water that equals the Water Demand Allocation described in the Contract, which is 2.12 million 

gallons per day (mgd), for the period 2010 through 2019.  The Authority was obligated to purchase 

all of the Initial Untreated Water Facilities Demand Allocation in the approximate amount of 

2.12 mgd for $3,521,445, which was paid to the City during a prior year.  The Authority also made 

an additional payment of $1,490,806 for untreated water facilities to the City during a prior year. 

On January 28, 2009, the Authority and the City executed a First Supplement to the Water Supply 

Contract (First Supplement) to provide for the permitting, engineering, surveying and right-of-way 

acquisition necessary for the construction of the Luce Bayou Interbasin Transfer Project.  Under the 

terms of the First Supplement, the Authority is obligated to fund its share of the project costs in 

future years. 

The Authority is required to reimburse the City on a periodic basis for the expenses incurred by the 

City in production and treating the water delivered to the Authority.  During the year ended 

December 31, 2015, the Authority purchased $1,087,962 of potable treated surface water from the 

City. 

On February 25, 2015, the Authority and the City executed a Second Supplement to the Water 

Supply Contract (Second Supplement) to provide for the expansion of the Northeast Water 

Purification Plant (NEWPP).  The Authority is requesting an increase in its treated water facilities 

demand allocation from 2.12 mgd to 7.00 mgd, through two construction phases.  Under the terms of 

the Second Supplement, the Authority is obligated to fund its share of the project costs through cash 

calls.  During the current year, the Authority made payments totaling $235,055 in cash calls pursuant 

to the Second Supplement. 

On November 10, 2015, the Authority and the City executed the Third and Fourth Supplements to 

the Water Supply Contract (Third and Fourth Supplements) to provide for the cost sharing, 

permitting, engineering, surveying and construction necessary for the Northeast Transmission 

Line-Segments 1 and 2, respectively.  The transmission line will consist of two segments: (1) a 

120-inch segment running west from inside the NEWPP site to a point where it connects to a 96-inch 

line running southwest, and (2) a segment of waterline of a size to be determined in the future from 

the end of Segment 1, generally following the public rights-of-way and future easements along 
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Beltway 8 to the west side of Interstate 45.  The Authority's Segment 1 reservation is 4.88 MGD, or 

1.525 percent of the design capacity of said Line, and the Segment 2 reservation is 4.88 MGD, or 

2.37 percent of the design capacity of said Line.  Under the terms of the Third and Fourth 

Supplements, the Authority is obligated to fund its share of the above project costs in future years. 

Note 7: North Harris County Regional Water Authority 

Effective November 6, 2013, the Authority and the North Authority entered into an Amended and 

Restated Joint Facilities Agreement (the Agreement) for a period of 40 years unless terminated by 

mutual agreement.  The Agreement provides for the financing, design and construction of the Greens 

Road Water Line, the Transmission Line, the Metering Station, the Spears Road RPS (as such terms 

are defined in the Agreement), and any future facilities designated as Joint Facilities by written 

agreement of the parties.  Pursuant to the terms of the Agreement, the Authority is also responsible 

for payment of its pro rata share of operation and maintenance costs, including major rehabilitations, 

as necessary, of the Joint Facilities.  The North Authority holds title to the Joint Facilities, with the 

exception of the Greens Road Water Line, which the City of Houston holds title to, and the Authority 

must pay a pro rata share of the costs of right-of-way acquisition, design and construction for the 

facilities.  During prior years, the Authority has provided funds totaling $8,378,124 to the North 

Authority for its share of each phase of the construction and design of the Joint Facilities. 

Note 8: Risk Management 

The Authority is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and destruction 

of assets; errors and omissions; and natural disasters for which the Authority participates, along with 

other entities, in the Texas Municipal League's Intergovernmental Risk Pool (the Pool).  The Pool 

purchases commercial insurance at group rates for participants in the Pool.  The Authority has no 

additional risk or responsibility to the Pool, outside of payment of insurance premiums.  The 

Authority has not significantly reduced insurance coverage or had settlements which exceeded 

coverage amounts in the past three fiscal years. 

 



 

 

Supplementary Information 
 



Central Harris County Regional Water Authority 
Supplementary Schedules Included Within This Report 

December 31, 2015 

 19 

(Schedules included are checked or explanatory notes provided for omitted schedules.) 

[X]  Notes Required by the Water District Accounting Manual  

  See "Notes to Financial Statements," Pages 10-18 

[X] Schedule of Services and Rates – Not Applicable 

[X] Schedule of General Fund Expenditures – Not Applicable 

[X] Schedule of Temporary Investments 

[X] Analysis of Taxes Levied and Receivable – Not Applicable 

[X] Schedule of Long-term Debt Service Requirements by Years  

[X] Changes in Long-term Bonded Debt 

[X] Comparative Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures – General Fund and Debt Service Fund –  

  Five Years – Not Applicable 

[X] Board Members, Key Personnel and Consultants 
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Interest

Rate

Maturity

Date

Face

Amount

Accrued

Interest

Receivable

TexPool 0.19% Demand 85,578$             -$                       

TexPool 0.19% Demand 1,133,402          -                         

TexPool 0.19% Demand 1,413,685          -                         

Money market mutual fund 0.00% Demand 8,825,911          -                         

Totals 11,458,576$      0$                      
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Due During Principal Interest Due

Fiscal Years Due February 1,

Ending December 31, August 1 August 1 Total

2016 1,000,000$          410,278$             1,410,278$          

2017 1,020,000            392,948               1,412,948            

2018 1,040,000            373,741               1,413,741            

2019 1,060,000            352,806               1,412,806            

2020 1,085,000            330,197               1,415,197            

2021 1,110,000            304,515               1,414,515            

2022 1,135,000            276,887               1,411,887            

2023 1,165,000            247,683               1,412,683            

2024 1,195,000            216,822               1,411,822            

2025 1,230,000            184,438               1,414,438            

2026 1,260,000            150,502               1,410,502            

2027 1,295,000            115,260               1,410,260            

2028 1,335,000            78,585                 1,413,585            

2029 1,375,000            40,178                 1,415,178            

Totals 16,305,000$        3,474,840$          19,779,840$        

Series 2008
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Due During Principal Interest Due

Fiscal Years Due February 1,

Ending December 31, August 1 August 1 Total

2016 -$                         173,702$             173,702$             

2017 270,000               271,881               541,881               

2018 275,000               270,666               545,666               

2019 280,000               268,824               548,824               

2020 285,000               266,416               551,416               

2021 285,000               263,423               548,423               

2022 285,000               259,946               544,946               

2023 295,000               255,985               550,985               

2024 300,000               251,353               551,353               

2025 305,000               246,313               551,313               

2026 315,000               240,945               555,945               

2027 315,000               234,740               549,740               

2028 325,000               227,841               552,841               

2029 330,000               220,171               550,171               

2030 345,000               211,789               556,789               

2031 355,000               202,647               557,647               

2032 360,000               192,884               552,884               

2033 375,000               182,804               557,804               

2034 385,000               172,079               557,079               

2035 395,000               160,990               555,990               

2036 410,000               149,496               559,496               

2037 420,000               136,745               556,745               

2038 430,000               123,683               553,683               

2039 450,000               110,310               560,310               

2040 460,000               96,270                 556,270               

2041 480,000               81,918                 561,918               

2042 490,000               66,559                 556,559               

2043 510,000               50,879                 560,879               

2044 525,000               34,508                 559,508               

2045 550,000               17,655                 567,655               

Totals 10,805,000$        5,443,422$          16,248,422$        

Series 2015
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Due During Total Total Total

Fiscal Years Principal Interest Principal and

Ending December 31, Due Due Interest Due

2016 1,000,000$          583,980$             1,583,980$          

2017 1,290,000            664,829               1,954,829            

2018 1,315,000            644,407               1,959,407            

2019 1,340,000            621,630               1,961,630            

2020 1,370,000            596,613               1,966,613            

2021 1,395,000            567,938               1,962,938            

2022 1,420,000            536,833               1,956,833            

2023 1,460,000            503,668               1,963,668            

2024 1,495,000            468,175               1,963,175            

2025 1,535,000            430,751               1,965,751            

2026 1,575,000            391,447               1,966,447            

2027 1,610,000            350,000               1,960,000            

2028 1,660,000            306,426               1,966,426            

2029 1,705,000            260,349               1,965,349            

2030 345,000               211,789               556,789               

2031 355,000               202,647               557,647               

2032 360,000               192,884               552,884               

2033 375,000               182,804               557,804               

2034 385,000               172,079               557,079               

2035 395,000               160,990               555,990               

2036 410,000               149,496               559,496               

2037 420,000               136,745               556,745               

2038 430,000               123,683               553,683               

2039 450,000               110,310               560,310               

2040 460,000               96,270                 556,270               

2041 480,000               81,918                 561,918               

2042 490,000               66,559                 556,559               

2043 510,000               50,879                 560,879               

2044 525,000               34,508                 559,508               

2045 550,000               17,655                 567,655               

Totals 27,110,000$        8,918,262$          36,028,262$        

Annual Requirements For All Series
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Interest rates

Dates interest payable

Maturity dates

Bonds outstanding, beginning of current year

Bonds sold during current year

Retirements, principal

Bonds outstanding, end of current year

Interest paid during current year

Paying agent's name and address:

Series 2008 -

Series 2015 -

Bond authority:

Amount authorized by voters

Amount issued

Remaining to be issued

August 1,

0.45% to

3.21%

1.3030% to

2.9220%

0

Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., Houston, Texas

0

425,871$            

10,805,000$       

0$                       

2,547,087$         

Average annual debt service payment (principal and interest) for remaining term of all debt: 1,200,942$         

Debt service fund cash and temporary investment balances as of December 31, 2015:

0

16,305,000$       

Tax Bonds

2016/2029

17,290,000$       

Total

00 0

425,871$            

Bonds

0

August 1,

17,290,000$       

Refunding

2017/2045

-                          

985,000              

Series 2008 Series 2015

-                          

-$                        

10,805,000         

Bond Issues

Amegy Bank National Association, Houston, Texas

10,805,000         

985,000              

0 0

Other Bonds

February 1/

August 1

February 1/

August 1

27,110,000$       
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Complete District mailing address: Central Harris County Regional Water Authority

c/o Schwartz, Page & Harding, L.L.P.

1300 Post Oak Boulevard, Suite 1400

Houston, Texas  77056

District business telephone number:

Submission date of the most recent District Registration Form

   (TWC Sections 36.054 and 49.054):

Limit on fees of office that a director may receive during a fiscal year:

Term of

Office

Elected & Title at

Board Members Expires Fees* Year-end

Elected

05/14-

Margaret L. Cox 05/18 3,300$         2,482$         President

Elected

05/12- Vice

Julian F. Boddy 05/16 2,250 0 President

Elected

05/12-

Judge Caston 05/16 2,550 836 Secretary

Elected

05/14- Assistant

Tom Gower 05/18 5,400 1,905 Secretary

Elected

05/14- Assistant

Richard C. Meek 05/18 3,600 1,966 Secretary

*Fees are the amounts actually paid to a director during the District's fiscal year.

7,200$                        

713.623.4531

June 4, 2014

Reimbursements

Expense
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Consultants Date Hired Title

BKD, LLP 02/07/07 17,400$         Auditor

CJ Parham Treadway 12/06/06 30,000 Lobbyist

FMatuska, Inc. 07/05/06 12,625 Bookkeeper

Financial

The GMS Group, L.L.C. 09/14/05 117,500 Advisor

IDS Engineering Group 09/14/05 125,985 Engineer

Municipal Operations & Consulting, Inc. 04/07/10 40,603 Operator

Attorney

(General Counsel

Schwartz, Page & Harding, L.L.P. 09/14/05 539,246 and Bond Counsel)

Investment Officer

Fran Matuska 09/14/05 N/A Bookkeeper

Reimbursements

Expense

Fees and 

 



 

 

Board of Directors 

Central Harris County Regional Water Authority 

Harris County, Texas 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of Central Harris County Regional Water 

Authority (the Authority) as of and for the year ended December 31, 2015, in accordance with auditing 

standards generally accepted in the United States of America, we considered the Authority's internal 

control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the 

purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an 

opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority's internal control.  Accordingly, we do not express an 

opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority's internal control. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph 

and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be significant deficiencies 

or material weaknesses and, therefore, there can be no assurance that all deficiencies, significant 

deficiencies or material weaknesses have been identified.  However, as discussed below, we identified 

certain deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.
 

A deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, 

in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect and correct 

misstatements of the Authority's financial statements on a timely basis.  A deficiency in design exists 

when a control necessary to meet a control objective is missing or an existing control is not properly 

designed so that, even if the control operates as designed, a control objective would not be met.  A 

deficiency in operation exists when a properly designed control does not operate as designed or when the 

person performing the control does not possess the necessary authority or competence to perform the 

control effectively. 

A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there 

is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the Authority's financial statements will not be 

prevented or detected and corrected on a timely basis. 

A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less 

severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with 

governance. 

We observed the following matters that we consider to be material weaknesses. 

Material Weaknesses 

The Authority's management consists of an elected Board of Directors (the Board).  Day-to-day 

operations are performed by private entities (consultants) under contract with the Authority.  The Board 

supervises the performance of the consultants; however, although consultants can be part of the 

Authority's system of internal control, the consultants are not members of management.  Per auditing 

standards, management is responsible for design and implementation of the Authority's system of internal 

controls.   
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Per auditing standards, one of the primary controls within the system of internal controls is related to the 

preparation of the financial statements.  Management of the Authority is responsible for either preparing 

the financial statements or having the knowledge to determine whether the financial statements have been 

properly prepared and are free from potential misstatement.  The absence of this expertise within 

management, or a consultant of the Authority hired to perform this service, is considered by auditing 

standards to be a material weakness in internal control over financial reporting.  

During the course of performing an audit, it is not unusual for the auditor to prepare various journal 

entries to correct and present the financial statements on the government-wide basis of accounting.  

Additionally, we noted adjustments to various accounts, such as due to others, professional fees, capital 

assets, depreciation and long-term debt, which were necessary in order for the financial statements to be 

in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.  The inability of management (or a 

consultant of the Authority hired to perform this service) to detect these necessary adjustments is 

considered by auditing standards to be a material weakness in internal control over financial reporting. 

Finally, management, or a consultant of the Authority, does not prepare the capital asset and depreciation 

register or post adjustments related to the presentation of the capital assets in the government-wide 

financial statements.  As management is not preparing or reviewing and does not have the expertise to 

prevent, detect and correct related significant potential misstatements, this is considered by auditing 

standards to be a material weakness. 

The material weaknesses noted above, if not corrected, could result in a material misstatement or 

omission of a required disclosure in the financial statements. 

Management's Response 

The Authority responds that the auditor's Management Letter, and the material weaknesses identified 

therein, are prepared in response to Statement on Auditing Standards No. 115 (SAS 115) and are not 

prompted by any other circumstances identified during the course of the audit and disclosed to the 

Authority's Board.  

As you know, the Board has, since the inception of the Authority, engaged the auditor to perform the 

Authority's audit and to prepare the financial statements and capital asset and depreciation schedules upon 

which the audit is based.  It is our understanding that this is the usual and customary practice for smaller 

special districts in Texas, such as the Authority, as it is more cost effective to engage consultants to 

perform such services than to employ persons (who would constitute district management) to perform 

same.  It is also the Board's understanding that, under the requirements of SAS 115, the engagement of 

the auditor to perform these services resulted in the Management Letter because (1) the Board members 

are not able to prevent, detect and correct a misstatement in the preparation of the Authority's financial 

statements or its capital asset and depreciation schedules or to make adjustments to same, and (2) the 

Board has not implemented controls to prevent, detect and correct a misstatement in the preparation of the 

Authority's financial statements or capital asset and depreciation schedules, such as the hiring of an 

employee or the engagement of another consultant to prepare the Authority's financial statements or 

capital asset and depreciation schedules. 
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With respect to items (1) and (2) identified above, the Board responds that its members are appointed or 

elected in accordance with the requirements set forth in the Texas Water Code, and that such members do 

not necessarily have the ability to prevent, detect and correct a misstatement in the preparation of the 

Authority's financial statements or to make adjustments to same.   

Further, the Board responds that it is a small government unit and that it engages the auditor based upon 

the auditor's professional qualifications, and in light of such qualifications, does not feel that the addition 

at this time of an employee or the engagement of a consultant to prepare the Authority's financial 

statements and capital asset and depreciation schedules (as a form of control) would be cost effective.  

Additionally, the Board adds that the Authority does not have any employees, but rather engages 

consultants who possess industry knowledge and expertise to provide financial services, including its 

bookkeeper, auditor and financial advisor, as well as consultants that provide legal, engineering, and 

operation and maintenance services.  In particular, the Authority's bookkeeper presents periodic financial 

information (unaudited) to the Board for review, which information generally reflects income, 

disbursements, adjustments and the status of investments relative to the Authority's various accounts. 

Management's written response to the material weaknesses identified in our audit has not been subjected 

to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements, and accordingly, we express no 

opinion on it. 

This communication is intended solely for the information and use of management, the Board of Directors 

and the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality, and is not intended to be, and should not be, used 

by anyone other than these specified parties. 

 

May 10, 2016 

 



InterimFinancialInformation N/A



Outstanding Debt
   

Yes, General obligation debt: N

   

Yes, Revenue debt: Y

   

Yes, Authorized but unissued debt: N

   

No: N



5/9/2016
OutstandingDebtServiceRequirements

$22,050,000 $10,805,000 TOTAL
Series Series BONDED

2008 (a) 2015 (b) DEBT SERVICE
Year
2014 $1,414,842 $1,414,842
2015 $1,410,870 $1,410,870
2016 $1,410,278 $173,701 $1,583,979
2017 $1,412,948 $541,881 $1,954,829
2018 $1,413,741 $545,666 $1,959,407
2019 $1,412,806 $548,823 $1,961,629
2020 $1,415,196 $551,415 $1,966,611
2021 $1,414,514 $548,423 $1,962,937
2022 $1,411,886 $544,946 $1,956,832
2023 $1,412,683 $550,984 $1,963,667
2024 $1,411,822 $551,353 $1,963,175
2025 $1,414,437 $551,313 $1,965,750
2026 $1,410,502 $555,945 $1,966,447
2027 $1,410,259 $549,739 $1,959,998
2028 $1,413,585 $552,841 $1,966,426
2029 $1,415,177 $550,171 $1,965,348
2030 $556,789 $556,789
2031 $557,646 $557,646
2032 $552,884 $552,884
2033 $557,804 $557,804
2034 $557,079 $557,079
2035 $555,991 $555,991
2036 $559,496 $559,496
2037 $556,745 $556,745
2038 $553,683 $553,683
2039 $560,310 $560,310
2040 $556,270 $556,270
2041 $561,918 $561,918
2042 $556,558 $556,558
2043 $560,878 $560,878
2044 $559,507 $559,507
2045 $567,655 $567,655
2046 $0
2047 $0
2048 $0
2049 $0
2050 $0

Total $22,605,546 $16,248,414 $38,853,960

(a)  Reflects the sale of $22,050,000 Series 2008 Bonds sold to the TWDB ACTUAL RESULTS.
(b)  Reflects the sale of $10,805,000 Series 2015 SWIFT Bonds to the TWDB ACTUAL RESULTS.

CENTRAL HARRIS COUNTY REGIONAL WATER AUTHORITY
Outstanding Debt Service Requirements

 



Expenses 336,695            415,161            921,362         
3,185,050         7,749,882         
6,124,050         2,562,537         
1,729,584         6,836,591         

650,000            812,500            

Total 12,025,379       18,376,671       921,362         

84% 14,315,927       21,876,989       1,096,860      

Bond Size 14,315,000       21,875,000       1,095,000      
5000 increments 5,000                5,000                5,000             
Total # Bonds @ 5000 per 2,863                4,375                219                

Applicant's Ten Largest Employers



   

Wal-Mart: 32,000

Houston Independent School District: 22,984

HEB Grocers: 21,471

City of Houston: 21,095

U.T.M.D. Anderson Cancer Center: 20,357

Memorial Herman Health System: 20,055

United Airlines: 17,000

Houston Methodist Hospital System: 16,861

Kroger Company: 15,216

Harris County: 14,583

   

Ten Largest Employers Comments: The list above represents 10 largest employers in Harris

County.

Bond Ratings
   

Bond Ratings

   

   

Bond Rating N/A: Y

Receive Water or Sewer
   

Is the project intended to allow the applicant to provide or receive water or sewer services to or

from another entity?: Y

Type Standard &
Poors

Date
Received

Fitch Date
Received

Moody's Date
Received

G.O.
Revenue
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FOURTH SUPPLEMENT TO VATER SUPPLY CONTRACT /675

BETWEEN THE CiTY OF HOUSTON, TEXAS AND THE CENTRAL HARRIS COUNTY
REGIONAL WATER AUTHORITY

FOR THE NORTHEAST TRANSMISSION LINE—SEGMENT 2

THIS FOURTH SUPPLEMENT TO WATER SUPPLY CONTRACT BETVEEN THE

CITY OF HOUSTON, TEXAS AND THE CENTRAL HARRIS COUT4TY REGIONAL WATER

AUTHORITY FOR THE NORTHEAST TRANSMISSION LINE—SEGMENT 2 (this “Fourth

Supplement”) is made by and between the CiTY OF HOUSTON, TEXAS (“Houston’) and the

CENTRAL HARRIS COUNTY REGIONAL WATER AUTHORITY (the “Authority”) for the

purpose of providing for the construction of an additional large-diameter water transmission line from

Houston’s Northeast Water Purification Plant to the Authority’s transmission and distribution system.

This Fourth Supplement is effective on the date of countersignature hereof by the Houston Controller

(“Effective Date”). For and in consideration or the premises and mutual covenants and agreements

contained herein, the parties hereto to mutually agree as follows:
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ARTICLE 1.

RECITALS

1.1 Houston is a home-rule municipality, principally located in Harris County. Texas. Houston owns

a water treatment and distribution system. Houston and the Authority, as well as the West Harris

County Regional Water Authority, the North Fort Bend Water Authority, and North Harris

County Regional Waler Authority (colleclively. the ‘Other Aulhorities”), plan to construct a

transmission line from Houston’s Northeast Water Purification Plant located at 12121 North Sam

Houston Parkway East, Humble, Texas 77396 (“NEWPP”). The transmission line will consist of

two (2) segments, one (1) 120-inch segment running west from inside the NEWPP to a point

where it connects to a 96-inch line running southwest approximately 200 feet to the property line

of a meter station site owned by the West Harris County Regional Water Authority, as generally

shown and labeled as Segment I on Exhibit “C”. and a second (2nd) segment of water line of a

size to be determined in the future from the end of Segment 1, generally following the public

rights-of-way and future easements along Beltway 8 to the west side of Interstate 45 to a point

depicted on Exhibit “C” attached hereto (Segment 2”).

1.2 The Authorih is a Texas conservation and reclamation district organized and operating under the

provisions of House Bill No. 3181, Sevenh’-Ninth Legislature, as amended, and the Texas Water

Code. as amended.

1.3 The Authority has entered into Contract No. 55476, dated December 5, 2003 (the “Original

Contract”). with Houston for the purchase by the Authority of treated surface water from the

NEWPP.

1.4 Houston and the Authority executed a First Supplement to Water Supply Contract (“First

Supplement”) to provide for the cost sharing, permitting, engineering. surveying, construction,

and right-of-way and site acquisition necessan’ for the Luce Bayou Interbasin Transfer Project

(“Luce Bayou”) to convey untreated water from the Trinity River to Lake Houston. which

Houston approved pursuant to Ordinance 2009-0052 (Januan’ 28, 2009).

1.5 Houston and the Authority executed a First Amendment to the First Supplement (“First

Amendment”) in order to clarify certain funding for Luce Bayou. which Houston approved

pursuant to Ordinance 2013-0045 (January 22, 2013).
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1.6 Houston and the Authority executed a Second Supplement to Water Supply Contract (-‘Second

Supplement) in order to provide for the cost sharing, permitting, engineering, surveying.

construction, and right-of-way and site acquisition (if any) necessary for a 320 MGD expansion

of the NEWPP. which Houston approved pursuant to Ordinance 2015-0137 (February 25, 2015).

The Original Contract. First Supplement. First Amendment and Second Supplement are referred

to herein, collectively, the ‘Water Supply Contract.’

1.7 Houston and the Authority intend to execute a contract contemporaneously with the execution of

tlus Fourth Supplement, to provide for the cost sharing, permitting, engineering, surveying and

construction necessary for Segment I (“Third Supplement’).

1.8 Houston has executed contracts with each of the Other Authorities that are substantially similar to

the Water Supply Contract and intends to execute contracts with each of die Other Authorities

that are substantially similar to the Third Supplement. Houston also intends to execute a contract

with the North Authority that is substantially similar to this Fourth Supplement.

1.9 Houston has commenced acquisition of the rights-of-way, sites and easements necessary for

SeEment 2, and shall complete acquisition of all such rights-of-way, sites and easements in

sufficient time to proceed with the construction and operation of Segment 2.

1.10 Houston has commenced engineering work for Segment 2, and hereby represents that such

engineering work for the Segment 2 will be completed in a good and workmanlike manner and in

accordance with all applicable rules, regulations and requirements of all applicable governmental

entities having jurisdiction over the design, construction or operation of Segment 2. Contingent

upon the Authority and the North Authority timely satisi’ing their obligations to make payments

to Houston under this Fourth Supplement, Houston and the Authority intend for Houston to cause

the Segment 2 Project to be substantially complete not later than August 31,2021.

1.11 The Authority desires to participate with Houston in the Segment 2 Project (as defined below) in

order to convey to the Segment 2 Point(s) of Delivery the treated surface water the Authority has

contracted to receive pursuant to the Water Supply Contract.
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1.12 Houston and the Authoriw desire to participate in this Fourth Supplement to claHft’ and agree to

the terms for the cost sharing, permitting, engineering. surveying, construction, and right-of-way

and site acquisition operation, and maintenance necessan’ for Segment 2 and to amend the

definitions of certain terms in the Water Supply Contract to include the facilities being

constructed by the Segment 2 Project.

1.13 Houston is authorized to enter into this Fourth Supplement pursuant to its Home Rule Charter and

Section 49.068 of the Texas Water Code.

1.14 The Authority is authorized to enter into this Fourth Supplement pursuant to Section 49.068 of

the Texas Water Code.

ARTICLE II

DEFINITIONS

Unless the context requires othenvise. capitalized terms in this Fourth Supplement shall have the

meaning provided in the Water Supply Contract. In addition, unless the context requires othenvise. the

following terms used in this Fourth Supplement shall have meanings provided below. In the event of a

conflict between the definition of a term provided in the Water Supply Contract and that provided in this

Fourth Supplement the definition in this Fourth Supplement shall control for purposes of this Fourth

Supplement.

2.1 “AUP Report” means a report and associated findings obtained by Houston to review the

accounting for and allocation to the parties of Project Costs which is produced by an independent

accounting firm engaged by Houston under an agreed-upon procedures engagement conducted in

accordance with (i) Sections 4.10 or 4.11 of this Fourth Supplement, and (ii) the Statements on

Standards for Attestation Engagements published by the American Institute of Certified Public

Accountants.

2.2 “Authorized Investments” means investment pool(s): (i) that comply with the requirements of

Houston’s investment policy and Texas Government Code Chapter 2256. and (ii) in which

Houston’s funds (in addition to funds from the Authoriw) may be invested.
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2.3 “Authority Representative” shall mean the individual authorized in writing by the Authority to

act on behalf of the Authority in the manner described in this Fourth Supplement. or an

alternative individual approved by the Authorinc which individual may be changed from time to

time.

2.4 “Authority’s Segment 2 Reservation” is 4.88 MGD, as reflected on Exhibit “A” (Participation

Table) and constitutes the Authority’s Treated Water Facilities Demand Allocation in Segment 2.

2.5 “North Authority” shall mean the North Harris County Regional Water Authority and any

successor entity thereto.

2.6 ‘Completion Date” shall mean the date by which all Sub-Segments must be substantially

complete. which is August 31, 2021. or such other date on which the Utility Official and the

Authoriw Representative may agree in writing, subject to (i) the Authority’s timely compliance

with its obligations to pay as provided in this Fourth Supplement, (ii) the Other Authorities’

timely compliance with their obligations to pay as provided in agreements that are substantially

similar to this Fourth Supplement, and (iii) Houston’s customary’ tenns and provisions within its

construction contracts regarding extension of time.

2.7 Construction Contractor” shall mean a contractor with which Houston contracts for the

construction of a Sub-Segment.

2.8 “Construction Costs” shall mean the costs associated with the construction of the Segment 2

Project. including all reasonable costs for labor, equipment. materials, and related Cost Recovery’

Amounts.

2.9 “Construction Sub-Segment Payment” means the Authority’s Pro Rata Share of Construction

Costs and Contingencies for a specific Sub-Segment.

2.10 “Contingencies” shall mean an allowance to fund unforeseen changes in or additions to the work

that is the subject of a contract or proposed contract with a Construction Contractor.

2.11 “Contingencies Fund” shall mean a sub-account within the Project Account that shall contain all

funding for Contingencies which may arise during the Segment 2 Project.
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2.12 “Contineencies Ratio” shall mean the quotient of (a) the then-current balance of the

Contingencies Fund; divided by (b) the total of all Construction Costs reflected in the then-

current Project Budget for (I) contracts with a Construction Contractor that are not then

substantially complete, and (ii) such contracts for which the Authorih’ Representative has

received documents in accordance with Section 3.6.2. (Construction ContracEs).

2.13 “Cost Recovery Amounts” means the portion of the costs of Houston’s employees’

salaries, associated benefits, overhead, and itemized costs paid from the cost recovery

hind (Houston’s Fund 1001), that are allocated and attributable to the Segment I Project

for the period beginning on July 1, 2015, and concluding as of the date of final

completion of the Segment 2 Project and shall be calculated in the same maimer as

provided in Section 3.13 of the Second Supplement.

2.14 “Effective Date” shall mean the date on which the Houston Controller countersigns this Fourth

Supplement.

2.15 Enineerina Costs” shall mean the costs for engineering work associated with the Segment 2

Project, including all reasonable costs for the planning, management, oversight. inspection, basis

of design. engineering design. geotechnical investigations. sun’eys. estimates, materials testing,

plans, specifications, investigations, related Cost Recovery Amounts, necessary permitting, and

regulatory’ review/approval.

2.16 “Enaineerin Sub-SeEment Payment” shall mean the Authority’s Pro Rata Share of the

Engineering Costs necessary for Houston to fund such costs for a particular Sub-Segment.

2.17 “First Amendment” shall have the meaning given in Section 1.5 above.

2.18 “First Supplement” shall have the meaning given in Section 1.4 above.

2.19 “Fiscal Year” shall mean Houston’s fiscal year, as determined from time to time by Houston.

which currently expires on June 3t of each calendar year.

2.20 “MGD” shall mean million(s) of gallons per day of Water.

2.21 NEWPP” shall have the meaning given in Section 1.1 above.
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2.22 “Oriizinal Contract” shall have the meaning given in Section 1.3 above.

2.23 “Other Authorities” shall have the meaning given in Section 1.1.

2.24 “Pro Ram SharC shall mean the proportion of the Segment 2 Capacity allocable to each party

stated as a percentage. as specifically set forth on Exhibit “A” hereto.

2.25 “Proiect Accounr shall mean a segregated hind established and controlled by Houston for the

receipt and disbursement of the hinds of the Authority and the North Authority, and used by

Houston to pay the Authority’s and North Authority’s respective Pro Rata Shares of Project Costs,

as set forth herein.

2.26 “Proiect Budget” shall mean the chart attached as Exhibit “B”, which (a) reflects the estimated

Project Costs for each Sub-Segment, including any Project Costs funded pursuant to Section 4.3

(Previously Appropriated Project Costs), and (b) will be updated in accordance with this Fourth

Supplement to reflect the updated estimated and actual Project Costs.

2.27 “Proiect Costs” shall mean Real Estate Costs, Engineering Costs, Construction Costs, and

Contingencies, except any of such costs which are incurred exclusively for the benefit of one

party and with that party’s prior written approval.

2.26 “Real Estate Costs” shall mean the cost of acquisition of interests in land, title documents and

services, legal costs. including court costs and fees, and other related charges required to secure

the easements. rights of way. and other property interests necessary and/or desirable to construct

Segment 2.

2.29 “Real Estate Fund” shall have the meaning given in Section 4.4.1 below.

2.30 “Schedule” shall mean the chart attached hereto as Exhibit “D” which reflects the currently

estimated timing of work items necessary to complete the Segment 2 Project.

2.31 “Second Supplement” shall have the meaning given in Section 1.6 above

2.32 “Segment I” shall have the meaning given in Section 1.1.

2.33 Segment 2” shall have the meaning given in Section 1.1.
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2.34 “Seament 2 Capacity” shall mean the Water transmission capacity of Segment 2, as reflected in

Exhibit “A.”

2.35 Segment 2 Point(s) of Deliveiw” shall mean the oulpul flange(s) on or the welded joint to the

connection on Segment 2 that will serve the Authority under the provisions of the Water Supply

Contract, as more particularly identified and described on Exhibit “C” attached hereto and

incorporated herein for all purposes, or such other location(s) on which the Utility Official and

the Authority Representative may agree in writing.

2.36 “Segment 2 Point(s) of Measurement” shall mean the location of the meter at which Houston

shall measure the Authority’s consumption of Water from Segment 2, as more particularly

described on Exhibit “C” attached hereto; provided, however, that the Segment 2 Point(s) of

Measurement may be at different locations than the Segment 2 Point(s) of Delivery, or at such

other location(s) on which the Utility Official and the Authority Representative may agree in

writing.

2.37 Seament 2 Proiect” shall mean the project for design. propern acquisition, and construction of

Segment 2.

2.38 “Seament 2 Project Parties” shall mean, collectively, Houston, the Authority and the North

Authority. Seament 2 Project ParW shall mean one (1) of the Segment 2 Project Parties.

2.39 “Sub-Seament” means one of the twelve (12) discrete portions of the Segment 2 Project depicted

in Exhibit “C,” as such discrete portions may be altered as agreed upon in writing by the Utility

Official and the Authority Representative from time-to-time during the Segment 2 Project.

2.40 “Sub-Seament AUP Report” shall mean the AUP Report prepared to review the accounting for

and allocation to the parties of the Project Costs for a specific Sub-Segment.

2.41 “True-up” shall have the meaning assigned in Section 4.10.2 below.

2.42 “Utility Official” shall mean the Director of the Department of Public Works and Engineering of

Houston. or any other person who may hereafter exercise the functions of said Director under the

applicable Ordinances of Houston.

2.43 “Water” shall mean potable treated surface water from the Houston System.
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2.44 “Water Supply Contract” shall have the meaning given in Section 1.6 above.

ARTICLE III

DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION OF SEGMENT 2

3.1 Engineering & Construction by Houston.

3.1.1 Houston shall consider the Authority as a major participant with Houston in Segment 2

and as such shall afford the Authorit all reasonable opportunities to participate in the

major decisions concerning the Segment 2 Project. To that end, the Authoriw

Representative shall be invited to attend all design scoping. design consideration. pre-bid,

pre-construction, and progress meetings held in connection with the Segment 2 Project.

3.1.2 Subject to the Authority providing funding for its Pro-Rata Share of Project Costs as

provided herein. Houston shall be responsible for the permitting. engineering, surveying.

construction, right-of-way and site acquisition, operation, and maintenance necessary’ for

Segment 2 such that Segment 2 is capable of delivering the Segment 2 Reservation to the

Segment 2 Point(s) of Delivery’.

3.1.3 Houston shall cause Segment 2 to be designed in a manner capable of delivering the

Authority’s Segment 2 Reservation to each of the Segment 2 Point(s) of Delivery at a

pressure, measured in pounds per square inch (‘PSI”), in accordance with the Texas

Commission on Environmental Quality standards for municipal treated water systems.

3.1.4 Within 45 days of Effective Date, the Utility Official shall cause an engineering report

for the Segment 2 Project which shall be signed and sealed by a licensed professional

engineer, to be completed and provided to the Authority Representative. Such report

shall include. but may not be limited to, the following: (i) the results of all modeling

performed for Segment 2, including the assumed system parameters used to complete all

such modeling, the resultant system pressure at the Segment 2 Point(s) of Delivery, and

the modeling performed to assess potential vater quality’ concerns during Segment 2

operation; (ii) recommendation regarding the necessity of additional disinfection facilities

along Segment 2, and the cost of constructing same if so recommended; (iii) an overall

review of the Project concept, including without limitation the size of the Segment 2
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pipeline, impact of various allocations of water delivery among the Segment 2 Point(s) of

Delivery, and water quality solutions, all based on the results of the findings and analysis

from items (i) and (ii) above; and (iv) any other items agreed upon by the Utility Official

and the Authority Representative. If during preparation or upon receipt of the above-

referenced engineering report the Authority Representative requests in writing a

supplemental engineering report and includes in such request its desired scope for such

report, the Utility Official and the Authority Representative shall agree to an additional

scope of work for the supplemental engineering report and the Utility Official shall

obtain such report within a reasonable time thereafter.

3.1.5 To the extent that the Houston is not required to appropriate additional funds, the Utility

Official and the Authority Representative may agree in writing to modi’ the size and/or

scope of the Segment 2 Project or the Authority’s Segment 2 Reservation. In the event of

such an agreement, the Utility Official and the Authority Representative may also agree

in writing to conforming amendments to the Exhibits to this Fourth Supplement.

3.2 Construction of Segment 2. Segment 2 shall be constructed pursuant to one (1) or more

construction contracts to be entered into by Houston at such time as it is determined reasonably

necessary by Houston to achieve completion of the Segment 2 Project on or before the
Comp’etion Date, and to meet the Schedule attached hereto as Exhibit “D” (Schedule). The

Utility Official has provided estimates of the Real Estate Costs. Engineering Costs, Construction

Costs, and Contingencies for the Segment 2 Project, as well as the manner of calculation of such
costs and the Segment 2 Project Parties’ respective Pro Rata Shares of such costs, all as more

specifically set forth on Exhibit “B” (Project Budget). The Utility Official shall cause an
updated Project Budget to be regularly prepared and promptly provided to the Authority

Representative throughout the Segment 2 Project. However, such updates to the Project Budget
shall not constitute an amendment to Exhibit “B” hereto.
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3.3 Allocation of Segment 2 Capaciw and Project Costs- The Segment 2 Capacity is based on certain

assumptions including, but not limited to, the Authority’s Segment 2 Reservation, as provided in

Exhibit “A” (Participation Table).

3.3.1 The Authoritys Pro Rata Share of Segment 2 Capacity shall be determined by the

following formula:

C = B/A

Where: “A’ is the Segment 2 Capacity’ for the Sub-Segment.

“B” is the Authority’s Segment 2 Reservation for the Sub-Segment.

C” is the Authority’s Pro Rata Share of Segment 2 Capacity for the Sub

Segment.

3.3.2 The Authority’s Pro Rata Share of Project Costs for each Sub-Segment shall be

determined by the following formula:

E = CxD

Where: C” is the Authority’s Pro Rata Share of Segment 2 Capacin for the Sub

Segment, as determined in accordance with Section 3.3.1 above.

“D” is the total of Project Costs for the Sub-Segment.

“E” is the Authority’s Pro Rata Share of Project Costs for the Sub-Segment.

3.3.3 Throughout the Segment 2 Project Houston shall separately track all costs for each Sub

Segment so that the Project Costs for each Sub-Segment can be accurately determined.

3.4 Real Estate Acquisition. Houston shall be responsible for the acquisition of all rights-of-way,

sites, and easements necessary’ or desirable for the construction, operation, and maintenance of

Segment 2. If necessary. Houston shall condemn any land required for rights-of-way, sites and

easements for the Segment 2 Project.

3.5 Desiim Responsibiliw and En2ineering Costs. In accordance with applicable law. Houston shall

engage an engineering firm to design each Sub-Segment. Upon procuring the services of such a

firm. Houston shall provide the Authority with notice of Houston’s intent to engage such firm,
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which notice shall include the total amount of Engineering Costs Houston shall pay under the

engagement for each Sub-Segment, the amount of such costs applicable to any Engineering Sub

Segment Payment and Construction Sub-Segment Payment. respectively, and the Authoritys Pro

Rata Shares of each of same. Except as may otherwise be agreed upon by the Utility’ Official and

the Authority Representative, upon completion of the sixty percent (60%). ninety percent (90%)

and final plans and specifications for the Segment 2 Project, the Utility Official shall provide the

Authority Representative with copies of same. and any addenda or supplements thereto, for

review and comment. The Authority’ Representative’s comments (i) shall be provided to the

Utility’ Official within fifteen (15) days of receipt by the Authority’ Representative, and (ii) shall

not be disclosed by Houston unless such disclosure is required pursuant to the Texas Public

Information Act. The Authority, contemporaneous with providing written comments, if any, to

Houston pursuant to this subsection, shall provide a copy of same to the North Authority’. Any

written comments the Authority receives from the North Authority shall not be disclosed by the

Authority unless required to do so pursuant to the Texas Public Information Act. Upon request

by the Authority, the Utility Official shall schedule a meeting with the Authority Representative

and other attendees as may be invited by the Authority’ Representative in order to review and

discuss such comments. After such meeting, the Utility Official shall cause the Authority’s

comments to be integrated and included on such plans and specifications where such integration

and inclusion are practical, as reasonably determined by the Utility Official.

3.6 Construction Contracts. Subject to the conditions described below and procurement in accordance

with applicable law. Houston shall enter a contract with a Construction Contractor for the

construction of each Sub-Segment.

3.6.1 Prior to providing any such construction contract or any addenda or supplements thereto

to a prospective Construction Contractor, Houston shall provide a draft of same to the

Authority’ Representative for review and comment. At the same time Houston sends the

Authority Representative a construction contract. Houston shall also send to the

Authority’ the following information: (a) a detailed breakdown of the estimated Project

Costs included in such construction contract: (b) the Pro-Rata Share of same to be paid

by each of the Segment 2 Project Parties: (c) the then current balance of the Project

Account and the allocation of such balance to each Segment 2 Project Party; and (d) the

then-current balance of the Contingencies Fund, the allocation of such balance to each

Segment 2 Project Party and the calculation of the then-current Contingencies Ratio
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including the estimated Project Costs resulting from such construction contract

(collectively referred to in this Section as the ‘Supplementary Information”).

3.6.2 With regard to a construction contract and the Supplementary Information, the Authority

Representative shall provide any comments to the Utility Official within fifteen (15) days

after the Authority Representative’s receipt of same. With regard to any addenda or

supplements to a construction contract, the Authority Representative shall provide written

comments. if any, within five (5) business days after receipt of same. Additional time for

review may be granted by Houston to the Authority, upon request, if such additional time

will not adversely affect the construction schedule of any Sub-Segment. Upon request by

the Authority, the Utility OFficial shall schedule a meeting with the Authority

Representative in order to review and discuss any such comments. The Utility Official

shall reasonably consider all such comments provided by the Authority Representative

and, in his or her reasonable discretion, integrate and address such comments in the

construction contract, addendum or supplement, as applicable, where practical. Houston

shall not disclose any written comments provided by the Authority pursuant to this sub

section unless such disclosure is required by the Texas Public Information Act. The

Authority, contemporaneous with providing written comments, if any, to Houston

pursuant to this subsection, shall provide a copy of same to the North Authority. Any

written comments the Authority receives from the North Authority shall not be disclosed

by the Authority unless required to do so pursuant to the Texas Public Information Act.

3.6.3 The Utility Official may, in his or her reasonable discretion, include in any construction

contract for a Sub-Segment work items to be performed for the benefit of less than all of

the Segment 2 Project Parties, but such items are not part of the Segment 2 Project and

the costs related to same are not Project Costs (“Non-Project Items”). If Houston

includes any Non-Project Items in a construction contract at the written request and for

the benefit of the Authority, the Authority shall be obligated to pay for its share of the

costs of same in proportion to the Authority’s benefit resulting therefrom and in

accordance with this Fourth Supplement as though such costs were Project Costs. If any

Non-Project Items are included in a construction contract and the Authority did not

request such items in writing. Houston shall provide written notice to the Authority of its

intent to include the Non-Project Items in a construction contract and the estimated costs

of same, and the Authority shall not be obligated to pay for any costs related to same.

Houston shall list any Non-Project Items as separate line items in the bid documents for
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the construction contract in which such items are included. In addition, Houston shall be

responsible for sending invoicing for and executing work on Non-Project Items as if they

were part of the Segment 2 Project.

3.6.4 If the contract duration of a construction contract exceeds two (2) years, upon written

request from the Authority Representative, Houston will provide the Authority with a

licensed professional engineers certification that the contract will either be substantially

complete within three (3) years or that a period of up to five (5) years is necessary to

complete the work, as applicable in the professional judgment of such engineer.

3.6.5 Houston shall administer the construction contract(s) in accordance with applicable

governmental rules and regulations. Houston will monitor the construction for general

conformance with the plans and specifications and to ensure that the work is performed in

a good and workmanlike manner and generally in accordance with all applicable rules,

regulations and requirements of the governmental entities having jurisdiction over the

construction of the Segment 2 Project. Houston shall immediately noti& the Authority

Representative of any significant contract issues or problems which may adversely affect

the Segment 2 Project or its scheduled completion date.

3.6.6 Houston shall include in each construction contract with a Construction Contractor a

requirement that the Construction Contractor achieve substantial completion of the Sub

Segment no later than the Completion Date, provided that Houston may require an earlier

completion date. In addition, for such contracts with a projected substantial completion

date on or afier August 31, 2020, based on the date and duration of the contract, Houston

shall also include a paragraph in the construction contract that provides for liquidated

damages in the amount of $50,000 per day in the event of a delay by the Contractor in

achieving substantial completion beyond the Completion Date. Notwithstanding the

foregoing, at the time of contracting with a Construction Contractor, the Utility Official

and the Authority Representative shall review the appropriateness of the aforementioned

amount of liquidated damages and may agree in writing to a different amount to be

included in the construction contract for a specific Sub-Segment. In addition, Houston

shall include in such contract a paragraph that is substantially similar to the following:

“Contractor acknowledges the City’s commitments to the Central Harris County

Regional Water Authority and North Harris County Regional Water Authority
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(Authorities”) under the Fourth Supplements to Water Supply Contract for the

Northeast Transmission Line-Segment 2 (“Fourth Supplements”) and agrees that

the Authorities vill suffer damages in the event of a delay by the Contractor in

achieving substantial completion beyond the Completion Dale provided in such

Fourth Supplements. Without limiting anything set forth elsewhere in this

construction contract regarding liquidated damages, Contractor acknowledges

that the Authorities’ damages are an intended factor in the calculation of the

amount of the liquidated damages hereunder and agrees that each of the

Authorities are singularly and collectively third-party beneficiaries of the

Contractor’s obligation to pay liquidated damages under this construction

contract. Contractor and the City of Houston acknowledge and agree that this

paragraph is an express exception to the limitation on third-party rights set forth

elsewhere in this construction contract and a material inducement to obtain

Thnding of this construction contract by the Authorities in accordance with their

respective Fourth Supplements. However, nothing in this paragraph is intended

to provide the Authorities with an independent right of action against the

Contractor; it being understood that the City will be responsible for the

enforcement of the rights of the Authorities under this paragraph.”

The Utility Official and Authority Representative may agree in writing to modifications

to this Section.

3.7 Chane Orders to Construction Contracts. Subject to the conditions contained in this Section,

Houston shall draw on the Contingency Fund to pay for any and all change orders to contracts

with Construction Contractors. The Utility Official shall submit change orders for any Sub

Segment with a value over five percent (5%) of the original construction contract price for the

applicable Sub-Segment to the Authority Representative for review and comment. If the

Authority Representative does not make written objections within five (5) business days after

receipt of the change order. Houston may assume the Authority has no comments to such change

order; provided, however, that additional time for review and comment may be granted by

Houston to the Authoriw, upon request, if such additional time will not adversely affect the

construction schedule of any Sub-Segment. If an objection is made by the Authority. Houston

shall reasonably consider same and use good faith efforts to address the objection where practical.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, Houston shall not be allowed to approve a change order to a
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construction contract if the change order allows substantial completion ofa Sub-Segment to occur
after the Completion Date without the prior written approval of the Authority Representative.

3.8 Site Visits and Reports. Upon completion of any Sub-Segment, Houston shall provide the
Authority Representative with notice of and an opportunity to participate in any final inspection
and/or walk-through of the completed Sub-Segment, including participation in the development
of final punch lists and final acceptance of the Sub-Segment.

3.9 Ownership and Seament 2 Capacity. Unless otherwise agreed in writing by Houston and the
Authority. Houston shall hold legal title to Segment 2; provided, however, that Houston and the
Authority shall each have an undivided equitable interest in the use and benefit of Segment 2
Capacity, in accordance with their respective Pro Rata Shares of Segment 2 Capacity.

3.10 Books. Records and Data. All books, test data, charges, and other records relating to the
rendering of and billing for the Project Costs (collectively, the “Construction Records’) shall be
preserved by Houston in accordance with Houston’s records retention schedules, if any, and
otherwise in compliance with all laws and regulations regarding the same, but in no case less than
two (2) years following the completion of the applicable Sub-Segment AUP Report.

3.10.1 Houston shall make such Construction Records available to the Authority for inspection
at Houston’s place of business in Harris County, Texas during normal business hours.

3.10.2 Houston shall make available to the Authority for review all information, data and
records concerning the discharge flow rate and pressures through Segment 2 and all
relevant data related to the Houston System located between the NEWPP and the Point(s)
of Deliven’.

3.11 Time of Completion. Houston agrees to proceed with due diligence to construct Segment 2 in
order to provide Water to the Authorth’ in accordance with the terms of this Fourth Supplement.

ARTICLE IV

PAYMENT OF PROJECT COSTS

4.1 Funds Held in Trust: Limitations on Use. Until ftnds remitted to Houston by the Authority are
expended in accordance with this Fourth Supplement, all payments from the Authority to
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Houston for the Segment 2 Project shall (i) continue to be funds of the Authority, held by
Houston in trust for the benefit of the Authority; (ii) be deposited only into the Project Account:
(iii) be invested only in Authorized Investments, with all earnings and interest thereon inuring to
the benefit of the Authority; and (iv) be applied only to the Authority’s Pro Rata Share of Project
Costs.

4.2 General Invoice & Payment Requirements. Except as otherwise provided in tins Fourth
Supplement, this Section applies to all invoices for Project Costs Houston sends to the Authority
and the corresponding payments the Authority sends to Houston pursuant to this Fourth
Supplement.

4.2.1 The Utility Official shall cause invoices for the Authority’s Pro Rata Share of Project
Costs to be sent to the Authority Representative at the times and in the manner
contemplated in Sections 4.4.2—4.4.5 (Real Estate Payments), 4.5 (Engineering Sub
Segment Payments) and 4.6 (Construction Sub-Segment Payments). Houston shall
include the foiloving information on any such invoice: (a) a detailed breakdown of the
Project Costs included therein; (b) the Pro-Rata Share of same to be paid by each of the
Segment 2 Project Parties; (c) the then-current balance of the Project Account and the
allocation of such balance to each Segment 2 Project Party; (d) the then-current balance
of the Contingencies Fund, the allocation of such balance to each Segment 2 Project
Party, and the calculation of the then-current Contingencies Ratio; and (e) if such invoice
includes any amounts for Real Estate Costs, the then-current balance of the Real Estate
Fund and the allocation of such balance to each Segment 2 Project Party.

4.2.2 Unless the Aulhority Representative objects in writing to such invoice within five (5)
business days after receipt of same, Houston may assume the Authority has no comments
on the invoice; provided. however, that additional time for review and comment may be
granted by Houston to the Authority, upon request. if such additional time will not
adversely affect the construction schedule of any Sub-Segment. If an objection is made
by the Authority. Houston shall reasonably consider same and use good faith efforts to
address the objection where practical.

4.2.3 Within 45 days of receipt of an invoice or as soon as the Authority is able, using all
commercially reasonable efforts, to obtain the Texas Water Development Board’s
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permission to withdraw the necessary funds from escrow, the Authority shall pay to

Houston the amount stated in such notice.

4.2.4 Houston acbiowledges that (i) the Authority’s ability to pay Project Costs is largely

dependent on the Texas Water Development Board (the “TWDB”) releasing funds from

escrow, and (ii) the TWDB will require Houston, as the project sponsor for the Segment

2 Project, to submit information and documents regarding the Segment 2 Project directly

to the TWDB as a condition of releasing the Authority’s ftinds as such. As a result,

within five (5) days of receiving a written request from the Authority, Houston shall send

to the TWDB any information and/or documents necessary according to the TWDB for

the TWDB to release the Authority’s funds from escrow. If Houston fails to submit

information and/or documents to the TWDB within such timeframe, the date by which

the Authority must pay invoices from Houston pursuant to Section 4.2.3 above shall be

tolled until Houston makes such submittal to the TWDB.

4.3 Previously Appropriated Proiect Costs. The Segment 2 Project Parties acknowledge that Houston

has appropriated funds for Project Costs prior to November 1, 2015. As a pre-condition to

entering this Fourth Supplement, the Authority hereby agrees to pay its Pro-Rata Share of such

Project Costs appropriated by Houston prior to November I, 2015, which the Patties hereby agree

is 5293.973.00 (treviously Appropriated Costs”), as stated on Exhibit “E”. The Authority

agrees to pay Houston $293,973.00. representing the Authority’s Pro Rata Share of such

previously appropriated Project Costs, within ninety (90) days of the Effective Date. Subject to

verification under the applicable Sub-Segment AUP Report issued under this Fourth Supplement

and True-up, the Authority is not responsible for any Project Costs appropriated by Houston prior

to November 1. 2015. other than such $293,973.00, which amount includes Engineering Costs,

Real Estate Costs and Cost Recovery Amounts. The Utility Official shall have the authority to

draw funds from the Project Account to reimburse and pay Houston for the Authority’s Pro Rata

Share of such Previously Appropriated Costs afier presentation of invoices for such Previously

Appropriated Costs.

1.4 Real Estate Payments. By making the payment described in Section 4.3 (Previously

Appropriated Project Costs), the Authority has paid its Pro Rata Share of Real Estate Costs

incurred by Houston prior to July 1,2015.
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4.4.1 The City will establish a sub-account within the Project Account that will be used

exclusively to fund Real Eslale Costs (the ‘Real Estate Fund’). The Real Estate Fund

will have an initial balance of $500,000 (the “Initial Balance”). Interest earnings from the

Real Estate Fund will remain in the Real Estate Fund until such funds are transferred to

the Contingencies Fund.

4.4.2 Within 60 days after the Effective Date, the Utility Official shall invoice the Authority in

accordance with Section 4.2 (General Invoice & Payment Requirements) for the

Authority’s Pro Rata Share of (i) Real Estate Costs Houston estimates it will incur from

July 1. 2015 to December31, 2016, and (ii) the Initial Balance.

4.4.3 For Real Estate Costs to be incurred after January 1. 2017 and until all of the necessary

rights-of-way, site and easements are acquired for the Segment 2 Project, the Utility

Official shall send final invoices in accordance with Section 4.2 (General Invoice &

Payment Requirements) to the Authority Representative by August 1 of each year for its

estimated Pro Rata Share of Real Estate Costs to be incurred by Houston during the

following calendar year, until all of the Project Real Estate is acquired. However, the

time by which the Utility Official must provide a final invoice to the Authority

Representative may be altered as necessary and agreed upon in writing by the Utility

Official and the Authority Representative in order to accommodate the requirements for

funding same through the Texas Water Development Board’s State Waler

Implementation Fund for Texas or State Water Implementation Revenue Fund for Texas,

as applicable.

4.4.4 Each April, July, October and January during the Segment 2 Project, the Utility Official

shall provide the Authority Representative with a written report on Houston’s progress

toward acquiring property for the Segment 2 Project and the activity in the Real Estate

Fund during the immediately preceding calendar quarter. including (a) the status of

acquisition of all parcels and rights of way the City intends to acquire for the Segment 2

Project: (b) a list of the expenditures from the Real Estate Fund for each Sub-Segment;

(c) a list of the deposits or appropriations to the Real Estate Fund by each Segment 2

Project Party; and (d) the current balance of the Real Estate Fund and the allocation of

such balance to each Segment 2 Project Party (collectively, the Real Estate ReporC).
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4.4.5 If the Utility Official estimates. in his or her reasonable discretion, that the balance of the

Real Estate Fund will fall below the Initial Balance before the end of the then-current

calendar year, the Utiliw Official shall invoice the Authority for its Pro Rata Share of

such shortfall according to the provisions of Section 4.2 (General Invoice & Payment

Requirements).

4.4.6 After the acquisition of all real estate interests for the Segment 2 Project, the Utility

Official shall (a) provide notice to the Authority Representative stating the remaining

balance of the Real Estate Fund and the allocation of such balance to each Segment 2

Project Party, and (b) transfer any remaining balance of the Real Estate Fund into the

Contingencies Fund.

4.5 Enaineering Sub-Secment Payments. After receiving proposals and prior to engaging a design

engineer for a Sub-Segment the Utility Official shall invoice the Authority for the Engineering

Sub.Segment Payment for such Sub-Segment in accordance with Section 4.2 (General Invoice &

Payment Requirements). Houston shall use an Engineering Sub-Segment Payment solely to pay

the Authority’s Pro Rata Share of the Engineering Costs for the applicable Sub-Segment. If at

any time after the Authority pays the Engineering Sub-Segment Payment, the Utility Official

determines, in his or her reasonable discretion, that an Engineering Sub-Segment Payment will be

insufficient to fund the Authority’s Pro Ram Share of Engineering Costs for the applicable Sub

Segment through final completion of that Sub-Segment, the Utility Official shall invoice the

Authorin’ for its Pro Rata Share of such shortfall according to the provisions of Section 4.2

(General Invoice & Payment Requirements).

4.6 Construction Sub-Seament Payments. After receiving bids from prospective contractors and

selecting a Construction Contractor to whom the Utility Official will recommend Houston award

the construction contract for a Sub-Segment, the Utility Official shall invoice the Authority for

its Construction Sub-Segment Payment for such Sub-Segment in accordance with Section 4.2

(General Invoice & Payment Requirements), which shall be in the amount of the Authority’s Pro

Rata Share of such construction contract, plus Contingencies in accordance with Section 4.9

(Contingencies). Houston shall use Construction Sub-Segment Payments solely to pay the

Authorits Pro Rata Share of Project Costs for the applicable Sub-Segment(s).

4.7 Pavnient of Pay Estimates for Construction Costs. The Utility Official shall review the monthly

pay estimates related to the construction of the Segment 2 Project as submitted by the
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Construction Contractor(s). If Houston accepts the work as having been performed in general

conformance with the construction contract, the Utility Official shall submit such pay estimate to

the Authority Representative, including each Segment 2 Project Party’s respective Pro Rata Share

of same. The Authority Representative may provide written comments, if any, within five (5)

business days following the date same is received by the Authority Representative. The Utility

Official shall reasonably consider such comments and use good faith efforts to satisf’ same where

practical. Houston shall then be entitled to draw on the Project Account to pay the Authority’s

Pro Rata Share of the pay estimate(s). Following final completion of a Sub-Segment and

acceptance of the same by Houston and the Authority and, if applicable, any other appropriate

governmental entity, Houston shall issue a certificate of completion and the final pay estimate

from the Construction Contractor shall be submitted to the Authority Representative for review.

4.8 Transfer of Funds on Sub-Segment Completion.

4.8.1 Within sixty (60) days after substantial completion of a Sub-Segment, the Utility Official

shall send the Authority Representative a statement showing (a) the amounts of any hinds

from the Engineering Sub-Segment Payment and the Construction Sub-Segment Payment

for such Sub-Segment eligible to be de-encumbered; (b) the date on which Houston

intends to transfer such de-encumbered funds to the Contingencies Fund, which date shall

be no less than thirty days (30) after delivery of said statement; and (c) the expected

balance of the Contingencies Fund and the Contingencies Ratio following such transfer.

If the Authority Representative does not send written objections within fifteen (15) days

after receipt of the statement, the Utility Official shall transfer such amounts on the

intended date; provided, however, that additional time for review and approval may be

granted by Houston to the Authority.

4.8.2 Within sixty (60) days of final completion of a Sub-Segment, the Utility Official shall

send the Authority Representative a statement showing (a) the amounts of any remaining

hinds from the Engineering Sub-Segment Payment and the Construction Sub-Segment

Payment for such Sub-Segment; (b) the date on which Houston intends to transfer such

funds to the Contingencies Fund, which date shall be no less than thirty days (30) after

delivery of said statement; and (c) the expected balance of the Contingencies Fund and

the Contingencies Ratio following such transfer, If the Authority Representative does

not send written objections within fifteen (15) days after receipt of the statement, the
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Utility Official shall transfer such amounts on the intended date; provided, however, that

additional time for review and approval may be granted by Houston to the Authority.

4.9 Continaencies. Subject to the conditions stated in this Section, Houston may include in any

invoice for a Construction Sub-Segment Payment an amount of Contingencies equal to or less

than ten percent (10%) of the construction contract to which the Construction Sub-Segment

Payment relates. Houston shall deposit all such amounts for Contingencies into the

Contingencies Fund. Houston shall also deposit into the Contingencies Fund unexpended funds

from payments made for Real Estate Costs, in accordance with Section 4.4. and from Engineering
Sub-Segment Payments and Construction Sub-Segment Payments. in accordance with Section
4.8.

4.9.1 Prior to final completion of the Segment 2 Project or unless the Utility Official and

Authority Representative agree otherwise in writing, Houston ma)’ draw on the

Contingencies Fund exclusively to pay for Contingencies and Houston shall pay for

Contingencies exclusively from the Contingencies Fund. At least ten (10) business days

before the date that Houston draws on the Contingencies Fund, the Utility Official shall

provide notice of its intent to make such a draw to the Authority Representative, which

notice will include the total amount of such draw and each Segment 2 Project Party’s Pro

Rata Share of same. Interest earnings from the Contingencies Fund will remain in the

Contingencies Fund until the True-Up of the final AUP Report.

4.9.2 Except as may be agreed upon in writing by the Utility OfficiaL and the Authority

Representative, Houston may not invoice the Authority for Contingencies in any
Construction Sub-Segment Payment to the extent such Contingencies would cause the

Contingencies Ratio to exceed five percent (5%). In addition, except as may be agreed

upon in writing by the Utility Official and the Authority Representative and within 60

days of the calculation of the Contingencies Ratio by the Utility Official, Houston will
release to the Segment 2 Project Parties any amount by which Contingencies Ratio

exceeds ten percent (10%). Funds released in accordance with the preceding sentence

shall be divided among the Segment 2 Project Parties in proportion to the percentage
share of the Contingencies Fund balance attributable to each such party.
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1.10 Sub-Segment AUP Reports. Within sixty (60) days of Houston’s issuance of its audited annual

financial statements, but in no event later than the following March 1. Houston shall initiate the

preparation of a Sub-Segment AUP Report for each Sub-Segment completed during Houston’s

most recently ended fiscal year. if any, in order to veril\’ that the Authority has paid its

appropriate share of Project Costs for each such Sub-Segment. Such AUP shall also verif’ that

Houston used the funds paid by the Authority under Section 4.3 (Previously Appropriated Project

Costs) in accordance with such section. Each Sub-Segment AUP Report shall be prepared in

accordance with the accounting procedures to be agreed upon by the Utility Official and the

Authority Representative and shall take into account all Project Costs for the Sub-Segment, the

Authoriw’s Pro Rata Share of such costs. any liquidated damages owed to the Authority pursuant

to Section 3.6.6 hereof (based on the Authority’s Pro Rain Share) and any earnings and interest

accrued on the Authority’s pre-payment of such costs.

4.10.1 Houston shall cause each Sub-Segment AUP Report to be completed within one-hundred

twenty (120) days after it is initiated. Houston shall engage an independent certified

public accounting firm to conduct each Sub-Segment AUP Report. As soon as such firm

has completed the Sub-Segment AUP Report, Houston shall submit a copy of such Sub

Segment AUP Report to the Authority for review. The Authority shall have sixty (60)

days to review the Sub-Segment AUP Report and to provide comments on same to

Houston, Houston shall address the Authority’s comments and approve the final Sub

Segment AUP Report within thith (30) days of receipt of the Authority’s comments,

unless the Authority Representative and the Utility Official agree othenvise.

Notwithstanding the foregoing. the Utility Official and the Authority Representative may

agree in writing to vary the aforementioned schedule for completion of each Sub

Segment AUP Report.

4.10.2 In accordance with each Sub-Segment AUP Report, Houston and the Authority agree to

“true-up” the payments for each Sub-Segment such that if any Segment 2 Project Party

has underpaid its Pro Rata Share of Project Costs for the Sub-Segment. Houston will

debit the amount of such underpayment from that party’s allocation of the balance in the

Contingencies Fund. Conversely. if any Segment 2 Project Party has overpaid any such

costs according to the Sub-Segment AUP Report, Houston vill credit the amount of such

overpayment to that parW’s allocation of the balance in the Contingencies Fund. The

process described in this sub-section shall be referred to herein as a “True-up.”
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4.11 Final AUP Report. Within forty-five (45) days of Houstons issuance of a certificate of final

completion for the last Sub-Segment, Houston shall initiate the preparation of an AUP Report on

such final Sub-Segment. All provisions applicable to a Sub-Segment AUP report, including

without limitation the time within which such report must be completed and within which the

Authority must provide comments, shall apply to this final report. In addition, the final AUP

Report will test and verif’ any refunds issued from the Contingencies Fund to any Segment 2

Project Party pursuant to Section 4.9 (Contingencies) and the allocations among the Segment 2

Project Parties of the balance remaining in the Contingencies Fund.

ARTICLE V

COMPONENT PARTS OF SEGMENT 2 INCLUDED IN DEFINED TERMS

OF WATER SUPPLY CONTRACT

5.1 Transmission Facilities. Upon substantial completion of construction of each Sub-Segment, that

Sub-Segment is included in the definition of Transmission Facilities in the Water Supply

Contract all provisions of the Water Supply Contract applicable to Transmission Facilities apply

to same and Exhibit “E” to the Original Contract is amended to include that portion of Exhibit

“C” hereto that depicts such Sub-Segment.

5.2 Point(s) of Delivery. Upon substantial completion of construction of a Segment 2 Point of

Delivery, such Segment 2 Point of Delivery is included in the definition of Point(s) of Delivery in

the Water Supply Contract, all provisions of the Water Supply Contract applicable to Point(s) of

Delivery apply to same and Exhibit “C” to the Original Contract is amended to include that

portion of Exhibit “C” hereto that depicts such Segment 2 Point of Delivery’.

5.3 Point(s) of Measurement. Upon substantial completion of construction of a Segment 2 Point of

Measurement, such Segment 2 Point of Measurement is included in the definition of Point(s) of

Measurement in the Water Supply Contract, all provisions of the Water Supply Contract

applicable to Point(s) of Measurement apply to same and Exhibit “D” to the Original Contract is

amended to include that portion of Exhibit “C” hereto that depicts such Segment 2 Point of

Measurement.

5.4 Utiliw Official. The definition of “Utility Official” in the Water Supply Contract is hereby

changed to mean the Director of the Department of Public Works and Engineering of Houston, or
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any other person who may hereafter exercise the functions of said Director under the applicable

Ordinances of Houston.

ARTICLE VI

MEASUREMENT OF WATER CONSUI%WTION FROM SEGMENT 2

6.1 Connection and Meter. The Authority shall construct, at its sole cost, the Water handling

facilities between the Segment 2 Point(s) of Delivery and the Segment 2 Point(s) of

Measurement and set the water meter(s) at the Segment 2 Point(s) of Measurement under the

mutual approval and inspection of the Utility Official and the Authority at the locations

depicted on Exhibit “C”. The Authority acknowledges that the Utility Official will not

approve installation of Venturi meters at the Segment 2 Point(s) of Measurement. Before

any connection. the Authority System shall be disinfected in accordance with requirements

approved by the Utility Official. The Authority also agrees to provide a telephone (if required

by the Utility Official) and electronic connection accessible at the Segment 2 Point(s) of

Measurement. Houston shall allow the installation of a magnetic or similar low head loss

flow meter to measure the Authority’s flow at the Segment 2 Point(s) of Measurement.

6.2 Pressure Monitoring. If the Authority installs in-line pressure boosting facilities

downstream of the Segment 2 Point(s) of Delivery then, subject to Section 2.02 of the

Original Contract, the Authority shall also install an appropriate flow control device

downstream of the Segment 2 Point(s) of Delivery at no cost to Houston. In addition,

Houston may, at its sole option and expense, install the necessary equipment or system to

monitor the pressure of Segment 2. The Authority shall be provided access to such pressure

data on a continual basis.

ARTICLE VII

GENERAL MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

7.1 Term and Expiration. This Fourth Supplement shall be in force and effect from and after the

Effective Date and shall expire at noon on January I, 2080. At such time as this Fourth

Supplement is no longer in force and effect, if requested in writing by the Authority, Houston

agrees to continue to provide water to the Authority through Segment 2 upon the payment of

reasonable rates and charges therefor which take into account the capital payments paid by the
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Authority to Houston pursuant to this Fourth Supplement (and any amendments or supplements
thereto) and the Authority’s equitable interest described below. Upon the date this Fourth
Supplement is no Longer in force and effect, the Authority will continue to own the right to use its
Pro Ram Share of Segment 2 Capacity. The immediately preceding two (2) sentences shall
sun’ive the expiration or termination of tins Fourth Supplement.

7.2 Inaress and E2ress. During the term of this Fourth Supplement, and upon the giving of prior
notification to the Authority. Houston shall have the right of ingress and egress in, upon, under
and over any and all land, easements and rights-of-way of the Authority on which Houston, with
the Aulhoritys consent, constructs facilities to deliver Water to the Authority.

7.3 Assianments. This Fourth Supplement shall bind and benefit the respective parties arid their

legal successors. but shall not otherwise be assignable, in whole or in part by either party without

first obtaining written consent of the other. “Assignment” as used herein means assignment in law

or otherwise.

7.4 Subiect to Law. This Fourth Supplement shall be subject to all present and hanre valid laws,

orders, rules and regulations of the United States of America the State of Texas, any regulatory

body having jurisdiction and the Charter and Ordinances (to the extent the Ordinances are not

inconsistent with this Fourth Supplement) of the City of Houston. Texas. In order to protect the

Houston System it is specifically agreed that the Authority System shall be constructed and

operated to comply with the rules promulgated by the Texas Commission on Environmental

Quality, or any successor agency, the Houston Plumbing Code, and the policy of requirements of

the Utility Official regarding backflow prevention and cross connections. Should a condition in

violation of these requirements be discovered, the Authority shall promptly cure same.

7.5 No Additional Waiver Implied. The failure of either party hereto to insist, in any one or more

instances. upon performance of any of the terms, covenants or conditions of this Fourth

Supplement. shall not be construed as a waiver or relinquishment of the future performance of

any such term, covenant or condition by the other party hereto, but the obligation of such other

party with respect to such Thiure performance shall continue in full force and effect.

7.6 Menzer: Conflicts. This instrument contains all the agreements made between the parties with

regard to Segment 2, the Segment 2 Project, and the Segment 2 Capacity. This Fourth

Supplement merges the prior negotiations and understandings of the parties and embodies the
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entire agreement of the parties in relation to Segment 2, the Segment 2 Project, and the Segment 2

Capaciw. No other agreements, assurances, conditions, covenants (express or implied), or other
terms of any kind, exist between the parties regarding Segment 2. the Segment 2 Project, and the
Segment 2 Capacity contemplated in this Fourth Supplement. This Fourth Supplement shall
control over the Water Supply Contract with respect to the mailers addressed in this Fourth

Supplement, including, without limitation: (i) the Segment 2 Project and all payments from the
Authority related to the same, and (ii) the Authority’s Segment 2 Reservation and all payments

related to the same. Except to the extent inconsistent with this Fourth Supplement, all terms of
the Water Supply Contract remain in hill force and effect.

7.7 Notices. Until the Authority is otherwise notified in writing by Houston. the address of Houston

is and shall remain as follows:

City of Houston
Utility Official of Public Works and Engineering Department
P.O. Box 1560
Houston. Texas 77251-1 560

Until Houston is otherwise notified in writing by the Authority, the address of the

Authority is and shall remain as follows:

Central Harris County Regional Water Authority
do Authority Representative
1300 Post Oak Boulevard, Suite 1400
Houston. Texas 77056

All written notices, statements and payments required or permitted to be given under this

Fourth Supplement from one party to the other shall be deemed given by the deposit in a United

Stares Postal Service mailbox or receptacle of certified or registered mail, with proper postage

affixed thereto, addressed to the respective other party at the address set forth above or at such

other address as the parties respectively shall designate by written notice.

7.8 Authorship. The parties agree that tlus Fourth Supplement shall not be construed in favor of or

against either party on the basis that the party did or did not author this Fourth Supplement.

7.9 Parties in Interest. This Fourth Supplement shall be for the sole and exclusive benefit of the

parties hereto and shall not be construed to confer any rights upon any third party. Houston shall
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never be subject to any liability in damages to any customer of the Authority for any failure to

perform under this Fourth Supplement.

7.10 Captions. The captions appearing at the first of each numbered Section in this Fourth

Supplement are inserted and included solely for convenience and shall never be considered or

given any effect in construing this Fourth Supplement, or any provisions hereof, or in connection

with the duties, obligations, or liabilities of the respective parties hereto or in ascertaining intent,

if any questions of intent should arise.

7.11 Enforcement. The City Attorney or his or her designee shall have the right to enforce all legal

rights and obligations under this Fourth Supplement without further authorization.

7.12 Approvals. Unless othenvise provided for herein, any consent or approval of the parties shall be

made by the governing body of each party.

7.13 Time of Essence: Force Maleure. Time is of the essence with respect to performance of all

obligations set forth in this Fourth Supplement. The Force Majeure provisions of the Original

Contract apply to this Fourth Supplement; provided, however, Force Majeure does not excuse a

failure to timely satisfy Engineering Sub-Segment Payment or Construction Sub-Segment

Payment obligations.

7.14 Default and Remedies. Default shall occur only in the event either party fails to adhere to its

respective obligations hereunder. In such event, the non-defaulting party shall give the defaulting

party: (i) written notice describing such default and the necessary cure therefor; and (ii) the

opportunity to cure such default or provide an acceptable plan to cure the default within no less

than thirty (30) days of receipt of such notice. If the default is cured within the specified time

period to the satisfaction of the non-defaulting party, then no further action shall be taken by the

non-defaulting party. If the default is not cured or an acceptable plan to cure the default is not

submitted within the specified time period to the satisfaction of the non-defaulting party, the non-

defaulting party may pursue any available remedies existing at law or in equity. This Section shall

not be considered as specifying the exclusive remedy or procedure for remedy for any default,

and all remedies existing at law and in equity are to be available to either party; provided.

however, that the parties may submit their dispute in good faith to non-binding mediation, the
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costs of which will be shared equally by the parties, prior to either pam filing suit for any default

under this Fourth Supplement.

7.15 Severability. The provisions of this Fourth Supplement are severable, and if any provision or part

of this Fourth Supplement or the application thereof to any person or circumstance shall ever be

held by any court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid or unconstitutional for any reason, the

remainder of this Fourth Supplement and the application of such provision or part of this Fourth

Supplement to other persons or circumstances shall not be affected thereby.

7.16 Goods and/or Services. Houston and the Authority expressly acknowledge and agree that this

Fourth Supplement constitutes a contract by which each party is providing goods and/or services

to the other party and that this Fourth Supplement is subject to the provisions of Subchapter 1,

Chapter 271, of the Texas Local Government Code.

7.17 Written Amendment. Unless othenvise specified elsewhere in this Fourth Supplement, this

Fourth Supplement may be amended only by written instrument executed by the governing

bodies of Houston and the Authority.

7.18 Exhibits. Exhibits ‘At’ through “E” attached to this Fourth Supplement are hereby incorporated

herein for all purposes.

7.19 Rates. Houston and the Authority each represent and certi1’ that it will have on hand and

lawfully available sufficient hinds to make its payments due hereunder. Houston and the

Authority each recognize its respective duty to, and covenants and agrees that at all times it will,

establish, maintain, and from time to time adjust, the rates, fees, and charges for the services it

provides to its customers in order to generate revenue therefrom, together with funds received

from any other lawful source, sufficient to fund its obligations under this Fourth Supplement.

[EXECUTION PAGE FOLLOWS]

395 596v2
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11W WITNESS WUEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Fourth Supplement in multiple

copies, each of which shall be deemed to be an original, effective on the date of countersignature

indicated below.

ATTEST/SEAL: CENTRAL HARRIS COUNTY
REGIONAL WATER AUTHORITY

By:
Judfr

_________

Title: Sec et ry Title: Pr ident

ATTEST/SEAL: CITY OF HOUSTON, TEXAS

Sned by: p
City Secretary Mayor

APPROVED: COUNTERSIGNED BY:

ci4 J&

_

,414L1_ Director, Department of Public Works and City Controll&t,L 4L....,
t4V5J Engineering

APPROVED AS TO FORM: DATE COUNTERSIGNED:

7v

________

gETstan
L.D. Fil&t€ 3Y3,pj SJ- /
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108-inch Water Une

Exhibit A Participation Table

Participant p*4GO CapacIty Percent

NHCRWA 113.00 54.96%

CHCRWA 4.88 2.37%

City of Houston 87.72 42.67%

Total 205.60 100.00%
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EXHIBITD

NETL SCHEDULE - SEGMENT 2
ENGINEERING DESIGN CONSTRUCTION

WBS
Project NameiProject
Item Council Approval Contract End Council Approval Contract End

S-000900-0114 3rd Quarter-
Feasibility for NEIL Approved CalendarYear2O2o Not Applicable Not Applicable

--a -——W—

5-000900-0121 SWW Contract 3rd Quarter-

Approved CalendarYear2o2o NotApplicable NotApplicable
? k tflt —

2ndQuarter- lstQuarter

5-000900-0126 103” Smith to Lee 1st Quarter- CalendarYear Calendar Year

Approved CalendarYear 2018 2016 2018
———

2ndQuarter- lstQuarter

5000900o127 54 Interconnect along
1st Quarter- CalendarYear Calendar Year

Vickeiy
Approved Calendarvear2ol8 2016 2018

p.
2ndQuarter- lstQuarter

5-000900-0156 108” Lee to Vickery 1st Quarter- Calendarvear Calendarvear

Approved Calendarvear2ol8 2016 2018
a’

2ndQuarter- lstQuarter

5-000900-0140
108 Bellow Falls to

1st Quarter- CalendarYear Calendarvear

Approved CalendarYear2ol9 2017 2019
n

• 1st Quarter- 4th Quarter- 3rd Quarter
SMOO900-0154 lOB Railmad to

CalendarYear 3rd Quarter- CalendarYear Calendarvear
Ralston

2016 CalendarYear2ol9 2017 2019
a- fl

1st Quarter- 3rd Quarter- 2nd Quarter
lOW Ralston to Bellow

5-000900-0155 Calendar Year 2nd Quarter- Calendar Year CaledarYear
Falls

2016 CaledarYear 2020 2018 2020
aaa r:ra rnaafnwnes

lstQuarter- 4thQuarter- 3rdQuarter-
5-000900-00164 108” Vickery to Milner Calendar Year 3rd Quarter- CalendarYear CalendarYear

2016 CalendarYear2ol9 2017 2019
flw_S--aca

. lstQuarter- 3rdQuarter- 2ndQuarter-
soogoo-0l57 :;:rt0Ad CalendarYear 2ndQuarter- CalendaryYear CalendarYear

2016 CalendarYearzo2o 2018 2020
p—-——-r

1st Quarter- 3rd Quarter- 2nd Quarter
5-000900-0165

108” Aldine Westfield to
Calendar Year 2nd Quarter- Calendar Year CalendarYear

s’
2017 Calendaryear2o2l 2019 2021

1st Quarter- 3rd Quarter- 2nd Quarter-
66” Interconnect along

5-000900-0166 CalendarYear 2nd Quarter- CalendarYear CalendarYear
Hardy

2017 CalendarYear2o2l 2019 2021

• 1st Quarter- 3rd Quarter- 2nd Quarter
S-000900-0167 108” Hardy to Imperial

CalendarYear 2nd Quarter- CalendarYear CalendarYear
Valley

2017 CalendarYear2o2l 2019 2021
-

. litQuarter- 3rdQuarter- 2ndQuarter-
5-000900-olGa

108” Impenal Valley to
Calendaryear 2nd Quarter- CalendarYear CalendarYear

Green Plaza
2017 CalendarYear2o2l 2019 2021

5-000900-0176 Study 3rd Quarter-
Approved CalendarYear2o2o NotApplicable NotApplicable



EXHIBIT E

NETL PROJECT COST APPROPRIATED BEFORE NOVEMBER 1, 2015— SEGMENT 2

NOTES

Engineering

Construction

Construction Contingency

Cost Recovery Amounts

Real Estate

S 9,955,608

S 0

S 0

S 1,658,340

N NCR WA

5 789,971

Cost by Category Appropriation from Inception to 10/31/2015
(Real_Estate_Expenditure_thru_6/30/2015)

TOTAL $ 12,403,919

TOTAL

Pro Rata Share1 of Total

CH CRWA

City of Houston

5 12,403,919

S 6,817,194

S 293,973

S 5,292,752

1. Pro Rata Shares based on Participation Table (Exhibit A)

Project Description



   

Description of Project Need (for example, is the project needed to address a current compliance

issue, avoid potential compliance issues, extend service, expand capacity, etc.): The Harris-

Galveston Subsidence District (HGSD) and Fort Bend Subsidence District (FBSD) have

established requirements for entities within their boundaries to limit groundwater pumpage to a

specified percentage of total water use to address the issue of land surface subsidence caused by

prolonged heavy pumping from the Gulf Coast Aquifer; as demands are expected to grow with

time, the allowable percentage from groundwater is scheduled to decrease. In order to meet these

requirements, City of Houston (COH), North Harris County Regional Water Authority (NHCRWA),

and Central Harris County Regional Water Authority (CHCRWA) are developing a large shared

pipeline to convey treated surface water from the COH Northeast Water Purification Plant

(NEWPP), which is under contract to be significantly expanded. 

 

See City of Houston 2015 SWIFT Application for additional information.

 

   

Provide a detailed description of the proposed project. The description should include a discussion

of the current service area, existing system facilities; and an adequate description of all proposed

project elements (include a bulleted list of new project elements/components).: The project

consists of a 108” transmission pipeline jointly shared by the CHCRWA, the COH and the

NHCRWA. The transmission pipeline extends approximately 17 miles from the NEWPP west,

terminating just west of IH-45.  This application is to request funding for the CHCRWA capacity

buy-in for its portion of this transmission line.

 

See City of Houston 2015 SWIFT Application for additional information

 

   

Water Made Available
   

New Supply: 5,470 (acre-feet/year)/$10,420,512 (capital cost)

   

New Conservation Savings: 0 (acre-feet/year)/$0 (capital cost)

   

New Reuse Supply: 0 (acre-feet/year)/$0 (capital cost)

   

Maintenance of Current Supply: 0 (acre-feet/year)/$0 (capital cost)

SWIFT



   

SWIFT Funding Type

Low Interest Loan: $2905000.00

   

Is this request for multi-year funding or phased commitments?: N

   

As an applicant for financial assistance from SWIFT, I acknowledge that this project must comply

with any applicable legal obligations in federal law related to contracting with disadvantaged

business enterprises.: Y

   

As an applicant for financial assistance from SWIFT, I acknowledge that this project must comply

with applicable legal obligations in state law (Texas Government Code Chapter 2161 and Texas

Administrative Code Chapter 20, Subchapter B) related to contracting with historically

underutilized businesses.: Y



 

































































































































 































































































































































Project Location
   

County: Harris

Primary: Y

   

Can you locate your project to a specific address?: N

   

Project Address: 

Project City: 

Project State: TX

Project ZIP: 
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Exhibit A - Project Area Map NEWPP Second Source Water Line

.
Legend
Name

NEWPP 108-in WL
NEWPP 120-in WL
Proposed Vickery 54-in WL
WHCRWA/NFBWA route

3Q Water Purification Plant

![ GRP_Customers_(others)
"/ Wholesale_meters_2013

GRP_Customers_(Utility_Districts)

0 3 61.5 MilesLast updated June 5th, 2015 by K. Kim

NEWPP 120 in WL
2200 LFNEWPP 108-in WL

Existing 66-in WL

Draft

Flow % Velocity
Segment 1:  120" WL from NEWPP to WHCRWA/NFBWA take point 320.00 MGD 100.000% 6.3 ft/s
NHCRWA 113.00 MGD 35.313%
CHCRWA 4.88 MGD 1.525%
WHCRWA 68.50 MGD 21.406%
NFBWA 82.42 MGD 25.756%
City of Houston 51.20 MGD 16.000%
Total = 320.00 MGD 100.000%

% Velocity
Segment 2:  108" WL NEWPP to NHCRW

1

A

6

/CHCRWA and COH 205.60 MGD 100.000% 5.0 ft/s
NHCRWA 113.00 MGD 54.961%
CHCRWA 4.88 MGD 2.374%
WHCRWA 0.00 MGD 0.000%
NFBWA 0.00 MGD 0.000%
City of Houston 87.72 MGD 42.665%
Total = 205.60 MGD 100.000%

WHCRWA and NFBWA take point

Proposed 54-in WL along Vickery

 



Project Schedule
   

a) Requested loan closing date: 11-11-2016

b) Estimated date to submit environmental planning documents.: 06-30-2016

c) Estimated date to submit engineering planning documents.: 06-30-2017

d) Estimated date for completion of design.: 06-30-2019

e) Estimated Construction start date for first contract.: 06-30-2017

f) Estimated Construction end date for last contract: 06-30-2020



CENTRAL HARRIS COUNTY REG. WATER AUTHORITY

Water Demand Projects as of January 2013

Year

Total Water 

(MGD)

Surface Water 

(MGD)

Peak 

(MGD)

Population 

Served

2010 5.28 1.58 1.8 28,341

2011 5.43 1.63 1.84

2012 5.58 1.67 1.89

2013 5.73 1.72 1.93

2014 5.88 1.77 1.97

2015 6.03 1.81 2.01 32,400

2016 6.18 1.86 2.06

2017 6.33 1.90 2.10

2018 6.48 1.95 2.14

2019 6.63 2.00 2.19

2020 6.78 2.04 2.23 36,400

2021 6.93 2.09 2.27

2022 7.08 2.14 2.31

2023 7.23 2.18 2.36

2024 7.42 2.23 2.4

2025 7.45 2.47 2.64 40,000

2026 7.47 2.70 2.88

2027 7.50 2.94 3.12

2028 7.52 3.18 3.36

2029 7.55 3.42 3.60

2030 7.58 3.65 3.84 40,700

2031 7.60 3.89 4.08

2032 7.63 4.13 4.32

2033 7.65 4.36 4.56

2034 7.68 4.6 4.8

2035 7.88 6.3 6.9 42,300

\\Nt03\jobs\1000\102900000 CHCRWA\102900500 CHCRWA SW Conversion\Conversion 

Alternatives\[Copy of Demand projections as of 01.01.13_revMK.xlsx]Sheet1

maximum build out reached
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WRD-253d 
05/18/2010  

Texas Water Development Board 
Water Project Information 

A. Project Name B. Project No. C. County D. Regional 
Planning Group 
(A-P) 

E. Program(s) F. Loan  / Grant  Amount: G. Loan Term: 

H. Water Project Description: (Multiphase project, new or expansion; plant, well, storage, pump station, distribution system, etc) 

Attach map of service area affected by Project or other documentation. 
I. Is an Inter Basin Transfer potentially involved? 

        Yes                          No 

J. Is project located in a Groundwater District (If yes, identify District by name)? 

  Yes   _______________________________________________    No 
K. Projected Population from 
application for at least a 20 year 
period. Attach justification and list 
service area populations if 
different from Planning Area. 

Year 
Reference 

Year 2010 2020 2030 2040 

Population 
Projection 

Project Design Year Design Population 

L. Is the proposed project included in a current Regional Water Plan?     Yes        No        Don’t Know 
        (If Yes, please specify on what page in the Regional Water Plan - Regional Water Plan Page Number:______________ 

M. What type of water source is associated directly with the proposed project?   Surface Water     Groundwater        Reuse

N. Will the project increase the volume of water supply?      Yes              No 

O. What volume of water is the project anticipated to deliver/ treat per year?   ____________________Acre-Feet/Year  

P. Current Water Supply Information   
Surface Water Supply Source / Provider Names Certificate No. Source County Annual Volume and Unit 

Groundwater Source Aquifer Well Field location Source County Annual Volume and Unit 

Q. Proposed Water Supply Associated Directly with the Proposed Project 
Surface Water Supply Source / Provider Names Certificate No. Source County Annual Volume and Unit 

Groundwater Source Aquifer Well Field location: Source County Annual Volume and Unit 

R. Consulting Engineer Name 
 
 

Telephone No. E-mail address 

S. Applicant Contact Name, Title 
 
 

Telephone No. E-mail address 

Attachment Part D61

5,470 (CHCRWA Allotment)

2025

40,700

SWIFT

Harris              

Harris               

Harris

Harris                

Harris

City of Houston                     

 N/A                          

N/A                           

36,400

COH, NHCRWA and CHCRWA Shared Transmission

28.341

MKhouw@idseg.com                         

Gulf Coast Aquifer

Gulf Coast Aquifer                     

Same as above                                        

42,300

■

774 MG (contracted)

713.462.3178                    

■

5-B-CONV-002-1

42,300

H

575 MG (estimated)

2555 MG (contracted)

1200 MG 
(permitted)

Marcel Khouw                                           

■

City of Houston                     
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CENTRAL HARRIS COUNTY
REGIONAL WATER AUTHORITY

Phone: 713-462-3178

13333 NW. Freeway, Suite 300
Houston, Texas  77040

EXHIBIT NO. 1

AUTHORITY SERVICE AREA
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Property Rights



   

a) Does the applicant currently own all the property rights, groundwater permits and surface water

rights needed for this project?: Y

   

b) If all property rights, groundwater permits, and surface water rights, needed for this project have

not yet been acquired, identify the rights and/or permits that will need to be acquired and provide

the anticipated date by which the applicant expects to have acquired such rights and/or permits.

   
Type of Permit

Water Right
Entity from which
the right must be

acquired

Acquired by lease
or full ownership

Expected
acquisition date

Permit / Water
Right ID No.



 





WRD-208B 

11/6/2013 

1 

STATE OF TEXAS § 

§ 

COUNTY OF § 

GROUND WATER 

AFFIDAVIT 

Before me, the undersigned notary, on this day personally appeared , a person whose 

identity is known to me. After I administered an oath to him/her, upon his/her oath he/she said:  

1. I am over 18 years of age, of sound mind, and capable of making this affidavit. The facts

stated in this affidavit are within my personal knowledge and are true and correct.

2. I am an authorized representative of      , an entity that has filed an application

for financial assistance with the Texas Water Development Board for a project that

proposes the development of a new groundwater supply source.

3. Does the applicant own the proposed well site(s)?

Yes     No   

(a) Attach a copy of the property deed(s), contracts or other 

legal instrument documenting the ownership of the  

Project site(s). 

Item attached: Yes     No   

(b)   Were the groundwater water rights conveyed or otherwise 

transferred by a predecessor in title prior to the applicant's 

acquisition of the Project site(s)?  

Yes     No   

4. Does the applicant intend to acquire title to the proposed well site(s)?

Yes     No   

Attach a copy of a notice of intent to acquire property, a draft purchase 

agreement, an option to purchase property or other document showing  

that the applicant is in the process of acquiring the property on which the well 

Site(s) is to be located. 

Item attached: Yes     No   

5. Does the applicant lease the proposed well site(s)?

Yes     No   

Attach a copy of the executed lease agreement(s) or other contractual 

arrangement documenting that the applicant has the right to drill  

for and produce groundwater at the Project site(s). 

Item attached: Yes     No   

Not Applicable

 



WRD-208B 

11/6/2013 

 2 

6. Does the applicant intend to lease the proposed well site(s)?  

   Yes     No    

 Attach a copy of the draft lease agreement(s) or other contractual  

 arrangement documenting that the applicant is in the process of 

 acquiring the contractual right to drill for and produce groundwater  

 at the Project site(s). 

Item attached: Yes     No    

 

7. Is the project located within the boundaries of a groundwater  

 conservation district?   

   Yes     No    

 (a)  Attach all groundwater district permits issued by the District 

  authorizing groundwater production from the proposed 

groundwater well(s).  

Item attached: Yes     No    

 

 (b) Attach copies of all applications filed with a groundwater 

conservation district for any permit(s) required for the proposed 

groundwater well(s). 

 

Item attached: Yes     No    

 

 

Signed the       day of      , 20     . 

                                      ______________________________ 

                                      Name 

 

                                      ______________________________ 

                             Title 

Sworn to and subscribed before me by ______________________________  

on _________________________, 20___. 

 

 

 

      __________________________________________ 

      Notary Public in and for the State of Texas  

  [SEAL] 

      My Commission expires:  ____________________  

 

Permits & Easements



   

Are any major permits necessary for completion of the project?: N

   

Has the applicant obtained all necessary land and easements for the project?: N

   

Environmental Determination
   

Has a Categorical Exclusion (CE), Determination of No Effect, Finding of No Significant Impact

(FONSI), Record of Decision (ROD), or any other environmental determination been issued for

this project?: N

CE/DNE
   

Is the project potentially eligible for a CE/ Determination of No Effect (DNE) because it involves

only minor rehabilitation or the functional replacement of existing equipment?: N

Adverse Environmental/Social Impacts
   

Are there potentially adverse environmental or social impacts that may require mitigation or

extensive regulatory agency or public coordination (e.g. known impacts to properties eligible for

listing on the National Register of Historic Places; potentially significant public controversy; need

for an individual permit from the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers)?: N

Associated PIF(s)
   

PIF number(s):

   

There are no associated PIFs.

Description of
Land or Easement

Permit

Entity from which
the permit or right
must be acquired

Acquired by lease
or full ownership

Expected
acquisition date

To Be Funded by
TWDB (Yes/No)

See City of
Houston

TBD OWN 06-30-2018 Y
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